
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Bendy White 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Gregg Hart 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Jason Dominguez 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 

 
NOVEMBER 1, 2016 

AGENDA 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.santabarbaraca.gov/citytv for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee 
meetings, and for any changes to the replay schedule

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/citytv


 

11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 12:30 p.m. - Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting  
         4:00 p.m.  - City Advisory Group Interviews (Estimated Time) 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER 
(120.03) 
 
Subject:  Updates To Water Metering Requirements And Clarifying Requirement 
For Individual Metering 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee forward to Council for Introduction 
An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code Chapters 14.04 and 14.08, Updating and Clarifying Water Metering 
Requirements; Adding Existing Water Metering Requirements Previously Located In 
Chapter 22.04. 



 

11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 

AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through November 30, 2016. 
  
 

2. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring November 2016 As National Runaway 
Prevention Month (120.04) 
 
 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

3. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of October 18, 2016. 
  

4. Subject:  Additional Funding For City TV Equipment Replacement Project 
(210.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations by $104,000 in the 
General Fund, General Government Program, from unappropriated General 
Fund reserves and transfer these funds into the Capital Outlay Fund for the City 
TV Equipment Replacement Project. 



 

11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

5. Subject: Appropriation Of Auto Anti-Theft Funds For Advertising And 
Special Projects (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council appropriate $75,000 in the Fiscal Year 2017 
Police Department Asset Seizure and Miscellaneous Grants Fund from available 
reserves for advertising and special auto anti-theft projects. 
  

6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Neil And 
Judi Bruskin, Doing Business As Mother Stearns Candy Company (570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
and Authorizing the Waterfront Director to Execute a Lease Agreement with Neil 
and Judi Bruskin, a Sole Proprietorship, Doing Business As Mother Stearns 
Candy Company, 219-B Stearns Wharf, Commencing Upon the Effective Date of 
the Enabling Ordinance. 
  

7. Subject:  A Resolution Denying The Appeals Of Pete Dal Bello And Of 
Jarrett Gorin And Upholding The Decision Of The Planning Commission 
Regarding Approval Of A Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary At 118 N. Milpas  Street (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Denying the Appeals of Pete Dal Bello 
and of Jarrett Gorin and Upholding the Decision of the Planning Commission 
Granting Approval of a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Permit at 118 North Milpas Street, pursuant to Council's direction of May 10, 
2016. 
  

NOTICES 

8. The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 27, 2016, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

9. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Harbor 
Commission with the resignation of Stephen MacIntosh. This vacancy will be part 
of the current recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



 

11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

10. Subject:  Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On 
Additional Water Use Regulations (540.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive an update on the status of the current drought, projected supply 

shortages, and continue the discussion on additional water use 
regulations;  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to amend Professional Services 
Contract No. 21700032, with Katz and Associates, Inc., for public outreach 
on water supply and drought issues, increasing the original contract by 
$52,294 for a total not to exceed of $85,389, which includes $4,754 in 
extra services of Katz and Associates, Inc., that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

C. Authorize the City Attorney to execute a Fourth Amendment to Legal 
Service Agreement No. 24,835 with Hanson Bridgett, LLP to increase the 
"Do Not Exceed Limit" from $175,000 to $200,000 related to legal service 
for ongoing Desal DBO contractual services. 

 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

11. Subject:  Request From Mayor Schneider And Councilmember Murillo For 
Resolution In Support of Standing Rock Sioux (800.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve, by reading of title only, a Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Expressing Solidarity With The Standing 
Rock Sioux Regarding The Dakota Access Pipeline, as requested in a Memo 
from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember Murillo. 
  

12. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 15, 2016. 

(Estimated Time:  4:00 p.m.)  
(Continued from October 25, 2016, Item No. 17). 
 
 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 



 

11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (IF NECESSARY) 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
13. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Santa 
Barbara Channelkeeper v. City of Santa Barbara, USDC Case No. CV-1103624 
JHN (AGRx) 

Scheduling: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: November 1, 2016 Randy Rowse, Chair 
TIME:  12:30 p.m. Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Cathy Murillo 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Nicole Grisanti   Ariel Pierre Calonne 
Supervisor, City Administrator’s Office City Attorney 
 
                                                

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 
 
Subject:  Updates To Water Metering Requirements And Clarifying Requirement For 
Individual Metering  
 
Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee forward to Council for Introduction An 
Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Chapters 14.04 and 14.08, Updating and Clarifying Water Metering Requirements; 
Adding Existing Water Metering Requirements Previously Located In Chapter 22.04. 
 
 



 

File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Updates To Water Metering Requirements And Clarifying 

Requirement For Individual Metering 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Ordinance Committee forward to Council for Introduction An Ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapters 
14.04 and 14.08, Updating and Clarifying Water Metering Requirements; Adding Existing 
Water Metering Requirements Previously Located In Chapter 22.04. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
To promote water use efficiency, the City has had long-standing requirements that 1) 
each dwelling unit must be served by a separate water meter, and 2) separate irrigation 
meters are mandatory for non-residential landscapes between 1,000 and 5,000 square 
feet. These requirements have resided in Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) Title 
22: “Environmental Policy and Construction.” In an effort to make the regulations more 
coherent and consistent, staff recommends that these metering requirements be moved 
to Title 14: “Water and Sewers”, and further clarification be provided on the City’s 
existing policies. In addition, some sections of Title 14 pertaining to definitions of water 
connection, rates, and charges are over 40 years old and need updating. 
 
Metering Requirements and Placement 
The City’s existing requirement that each dwelling unit must be served by a separate 
water meter is currently located in SBMC 22.04.030 (E) Section 423 “Water Meters 
Required.” The City’s existing requirement that irrigation meters for non-residential 
landscaped areas between 1,000 and 5,000 square feet is currently located in SBMC 
22.04.060 (B) Section 5.304.2 “Outdoor Potable Water Use.” These requirements were 
adopted as previous local amendments to the California Plumbing Code (CPC) and 
California Green Building Code (CGBC), respectively. Under a separate ordinance, 
comprehensive changes to Title 22 are being proposed as local amendments to the 
2016 California Building Standards Codes, which includes CPC and CGBC. The 
proposed Title 22 changes will remove the above-mentioned metering requirements 
given that the requirements are proposed to be added to Title 14 under this proposed 
ordinance.  



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Updates To Water Metering Requirements And Clarifying Requirement For Individual 
Metering  
November 1, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

The proposed ordinance for the Title 14 language adds the metering requirements and 
also provides clarification of existing policies and updated terminology regarding 
approved configurations of individual meters. The individual metering requirement is 
currently implemented by installing City meters at the curb. However, in some cases, 
physical/space constraints prohibit installation of City meters at the curb. When space 
constraints exist, upon approval by the Public Works Director, a City master meter may 
be installed at the curb with individual City sub-meters on private property. Approval of 
this configuration requires certain conditions as described in the proposed ordinance, 
including an easement agreement for the City to operate and maintain the sub-meters 
on private property.  
 
An exemption has been added to the residential individual metering requirement for 100 
percent affordable housing projects. These projects will not be required to install one 
water meter for each dwelling unit; however, for purposes of leak detection, one water 
meter may serve no more than six residential dwelling units. 
 
A summary of the proposed changes is as follows:  
 

Section 14.04 
 

Amended to include definitions of “Master Meter” and “Sub-meter.” 
 

Section 
14.08.140 
 

Amended to provide clarification of existing City policies regarding 
water metering requirements when there is not adequate space at 
the curb line of the street to install the required water meters. 

Section 
14.08.150 
 

Added to include the existing requirements previously located in 
SBMC Title 22 requiring each dwelling unit to be served by a 
separate City water meter. Subsection A has been drafted to 
comply with recent amendments to Government Code Section 
65852.2 regarding the water metering of new accessory dwelling 
units (granny units). Subsection D includes an exemption for 
affordable housing projects. 

Section 
14.08.160 

Added to clarify that should a dwelling unit be converted to a 
commercial use, that commercial space must be metered 
separately from any residential dwelling units. This provision would 
be triggered if all, or any portion, of a dwelling unit is converted to 
a short-term rental / hotel. 

Section 
14.08.170 

Added to clarify that separate metering is required for new non-
residential condominium units. 

Section 
14.08.180 

Added to include the existing requirements previously located in 
SBMC Title 22 requiring dedicated irrigation meters for landscaped 
areas above a certain size. The irrigation meter requirement has 
been amended to include all multi-family and commercial irrigated 
areas over 1,000 square feet in order to be more aligned with 
requirements set forth in the existing California Water Code 
(§535). 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Updates To Water Metering Requirements And Clarifying Requirement For Individual 
Metering  
November 1, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

For information only, the State of California recently passed Senate Bill 7 (SB 7) in 
September 2016, that stipulates water purveyors must require dwelling units of newly 
constructed multi-unit residential and mixed use residential structures to be metered by 
individual water meters or privately owned sub-meters operated by a landlord or the 
landlord’s agent. It also outlines regulations regarding how a landlord may bill their 
tenants for water service. This bill will go into effect January 1, 2018. Staff continues to 
review the City’s individual metering policies and will return to Council with 
recommendations, if needed, prior to SB 7 taking effect. 
 
Updated Language for Water Connection, Rates, and Charges 
 
SBMC Title 14: “Water and Sewers” defines water connection, rates, and charges under 
Chapter 14.08. Some sections in this chapter are over 40 years old and need updating. 
A summary of the proposed changes is as follows:  
 
Section 14.08.010  
 

Amended to update word choice. 

Section 14.08.040 Amended so mandatory meter size changes will be based 
on flow rate rather than on average consumption. 

Sections 14.08.045, and 
14.08.050 
 

Amended to remove outdated section references and 
procedures. 

Section 14.08.070 Removed due to redundancy with SBMC Section 
14.08.050. 
 

Section 14.08.095 Removed and added to SBMC Section 14.08.090 to reflect 
current water rate terminology. 
 

Section 14.08.130 Amended to clarify when customers are required to pay a 
fee to test the accuracy of their water meter. 
 

 
Staff recommends that the Ordinance Committee forward the attached Ordinance to the 
City Council for approval. If the Ordinance Committee does so, the Ordinance will be 
presented to the City Council for introduction on November 8, 2016.  
 
ATTACHMENT: Ordinance with proposed changes 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/DH/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



1 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 11/1/16 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM THE EXISTING CODE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _________________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTERS 14.04 AND 14.08, 
UPDATING AND CLARIFYING WATER METERING 
REQUIREMENTS; ADDING EXISTING WATER 
METERING REQUIREMENTS PREVIOUSLY LOCATED IN 
CHAPTER 22.04 

WHEREAS, the requirement for separate water meters for individual dwelling units is 
presently located in Chapter 22.04 and is proposed to be removed from that Chapter;  

WHEREAS, the requirement for mandatory dedicated irrigation meters to serve 
landscaped areas of a certain size is presently located in Chapter 22.04 and is 
proposed to be removed from that Chapter;  

WHEREAS, requirements for water connections in the City of Santa Barbara is located 
in Municipal Code Chapter 14.08; and 

WHEREAS, regulatory compliance is more coherent and consistent when regulations 
concerning a subject are found in one location; 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to clarify existing water metering requirements when there 
are physical constraints to water meter installation  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Chapter 14.04 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to add 
Sections 14.04.065 and 14.04.075 to read as follows: 

14.04.065 Meter, Master 

 “Master Meter” means a City meter located upstream of one or more sub-meters that 
is used to measure the aggregate amount of water delivered to a group of customers or 
uses on the same lot or within the same project. 



2 
 

 

14.040.075 Sub-meter 

 “Sub-meter” means a City meter located downstream from a master meter that is 
used to measure the amount of water furnished to an individual customer or use located 
on a lot, or within a project, that has multiple customers or uses where the aggregate 
amount of water served to the group of customers or uses is measured by a master 
meter. 

SECTION 2. Sections 14.08.010, 14.08.040, 14.08.045, 14.08.050, 14.08.090, 
14.08.130, and 14.08.140 of Chapter 14.08 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code are 
amended to read as follows: 

14.08.010 New Connections to Mains - Application Required.  

 No new connection for any premises shall be made to City water mains or to City 
water system unless a written application has been properly filed with the Public Works 
Department, signed by the owner or his the owner’s agent, upon forms to be furnished 
by the Public Works Department. 

14.08.040 New Connections to Mains - Determination of Meter and Service Size.  

 The size of any new meter and service and/or reduction in meter size shall be subject 
to the final determination and approval by the Director of the Public Works Department.   

 Uniform California Plumbing Code requirements, as amended by the City, will be 
used as a guide for determining the size where applicable.   

 Where insufficient information is available to determine the size from the Uniform 
California Plumbing Code, the proper size may be determined on an area basis as 
follows:   

 (1) Usable Land Area: Service Size:   

  10,000 square feet or less 5/8 inch by 3/4 inch 

  10,000 to 20,000 square feet 1 inch 

  20,000 to 34,000 square feet 1-1/2 inch 

  35,000 square feet and over 2 inch or larger as required 

 (2) Existing services and meters:  In cases where the consumption history flow rate 
of a consumer'scustomer’s meter demand is greater than the average consumption of 
the next larger size meter manufacturer’s recommendation, the Director may require the 



3 
 

consumer customer to have installed at his the customer’s expense the next larger 
appropriate size meter and services. 

 (3) Change in meter size for any property will not be approved without the written 
consent acknowledgment of the property owner. 

14.08.045 Effective Date of Revised Fees, Charges, and Rates. 

 The revised rates and schedules imposed by Sections 14.08.050, 14.08.090 and 
14.08.095 of this chapter shall become effective as of the commencement of the first 
complete billing period following the effective date of the ordinance codified herein. The 
fees, charges, and rates referenced in this Chapter shall become effective as of the 
effective date of the most recent resolution of the City Council establishing such fees, 
charges, and rates. 

14.08.050 New Connections to Mains and Service Relocations - Fee Schedule.   

 A.(a) The service fees for original connections to the City water system and service 
relocations shall be set by resolution of the City Council.   

 B.(b) In addition to the service fees provided for in §14.08.050(a), applicants for 
original connections to the City water system shall also pay a "buy in" charge as 
established by resolution of the City Council.  This subsection shall be applicable only to 
the existing water service area at the time of the adoption of this ordinance.  

14.08.090 Water Service Meter Rates at Premises - Monthly Rates. 

 The monthly rates to be charged and collected shall be set by resolution of the City 
Council. These rates include usage charges based on the volume of water used and 
other fixed charges assessed without regard to the amount of water actually used. 

14.08.130 Meter Test - Replacing Meter. 

 Any consumer customer may have the accuracy of the meter through which water is 
being furnished to his the customer’s premises examined and tested by the City by 
making a written application therefor upon forms provided by the City and 
accompanying the same with a fee in an amount determined by resolution of the City 
Council. Upon receipt of such application and fee, the City shall examine and test such 
meter. If the meter is found to register a quantity of water which varies from the actual 
quantity of water passing through it by more than two percent (2%) published industry 
standards for metering accuracy, such meter shall be removed and another meter 
installed in lieu thereof. In any event, the fee shall be retained by the City. If the meter is 
found to register a quantity of water which varies from the actual quantity of water 
passing through the meter by no more than published industry standards for metering 
accuracy, the meter shall remain in service and the customer shall pay a fee for the 
evaluation of the meter in an amount determined by resolution of the City Council. 



4 
 

 

14.08.140 Placement Generally and General Treatment of Meters. 

 A. General Rule. All City meters of the Public Works Department shall be placed at 
the curb line of the street, whenever and wherever practicable, and shall be protected 
and maintained as a part of the operation of the Department. 

 B. Exceptions. If it is not practicable to place a City meter or City meters at the curb 
line of the street due to topography, the number of meters required for the project, or 
other existing uses of the right of way that conflict with the placement of the meters at 
the curb line, the Director may authorize such meter(s) to be located on private 
property, provided that: 

  1. A sub-meter located on private property shall be served by way of an 
upstream City master meter, which master meter may serve one or more sub-meters,  

  2. A master meter shall be located at the curb line of the street,  

  3. Sub-meters shall not serve non-residential uses, including, without limitation, 
commercial and industrial spaces, irrigation, and common areas, unless the Director 
determines that there is no feasible alternative for providing service, 

  4. A single master meter shall not serve sub-meters of differing user 
classifications, as those user classifications are specified in the City Council resolution 
adopted pursuant to Section 14.08.090,      

 5. The customer shall be responsible for the cost to install master meter and the 
sub-meter(s) and to pay any applicable fees as set forth in the City Council resolution 
adopted pursuant to Section 14.08.050, 

  6. The owner of the  property being served shall  enter into a written agreement 
with the City which includes a provision or provision(s) detailing ownership of the water 
distribution and water meter infrastructure located within the City right of way and on 
private property, and 

  7. The owner of the property being served shall grant to City an easement, 
license, or right of way as approved by the Director for purposes including but not 
limited to meter reading, maintenance, and replacement, turning on or off of water 
service, installation or removal of flow restrictors, and ingress to and egress from meters 
for said purposes.  



5 
 

 

SECTION 3. Sections 14.08.070 and 14.08.095 of Chapter 14.08 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code are deleted without replacement: 

14.08.070 Fees for Service Relocations. 

 Fees for City water service relocations shall be identical with those expressed in 
Section 14.08.050. 

14.08.095 Customer Service Charge.   

 In addition to all other charges imposed by this chapter, a customer service charge is 
hereby imposed and the same shall be collected in connection with all billings for water, 
without regard to actual water use, if any, at rates determined by resolution of the City 
Council. 

SECTION 4. Chapter 14.08 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to add 
Sections 14.08.150, 14.08.160, 14.08.170 and 14.08.180 to read as follows: 

14.08.150 New Dwelling Units - Metering Requirements. 

 A. GENERAL RULE.  Every new dwelling unit, including condominium units, 
apartment units, and accessory dwelling units, shall be served by a separate meter.  
However, if a new accessory dwelling unit is located within a single-family residential 
zone, contained within the existing space of a single-family residence or an existing 
accessory structure, has independent exterior access from the existing residence, and 
the side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire safety, the new accessory dwelling unit 
is not required to be served by a separate meter.   

    B. PROJECTS OF FOUR OR FEWER UNITS.  For projects adding four (4) or fewer 
new dwelling units, common area uses on the lots or parcels within the project 
including, but not limited to, irrigation, water features (pools, spas, fountains), and 
shared laundry facilities, may be served by the meter or meters measuring the water 
supplied to the dwelling units or may be served by a separate meter or meters.  For 
purposes of this subsection, if a project demolishes an existing dwelling unit and 
constructs a new dwelling unit in its place, the resulting unit shall be considered a new 
dwelling unit.   

 C. PROJECTS OF FIVE OR MORE UNITS.  For projects adding five (5) or more 
dwelling units, the meters measuring the water supplied to the interior of the dwelling 
units shall only measure the water use within the dwelling units. All other uses on the 
lots or parcels within the project, including, but not limited to, irrigation, water features 
(pools, spas, fountains), and shared laundry facilities, shall be served by one or more 
meters separate from the meters measuring the water supplied to the dwelling units. For 
purposes of this subsection, if a project demolishes an existing dwelling unit and 



6 
 

constructs a new dwelling unit in its place, the resulting unit shall be considered a new 
dwelling unit. 

D.  LOW INCOME HOUSING PROJECTS. For developments in which 100% of the 
units are rental units which are affordable to very low or low income households, one 
water meter may serve six (6) residential dwelling units if the following conditions are 
met: 

(1) A covenant is recorded in the Official Records of the County of Santa Barbara 
against the title which states: (a) all of the residential units on the Real Property shall be 
rented to very low or low income households; (b) the maximum rent and the maximum 
household income of tenants shall be determined as set forth in the Affordable Housing 
Policies and Procedures Manual of the City of Santa Barbara, which is adopted by City 
Council Resolution from time to time; and (c) the maximum rent shall be controlled 
through recorded documents to assure continued affordability for a term that is 
consistent with the City’s Affordable Housing Policies and Procedures Manual. The City 
shall be a party to the covenant; and 

(2) A covenant is recorded in the Official Records of the County of Santa Barbara 
against the title which states that the development has received a reduction in the 
number of water meters required because it is a project with 100% affordable units. In 
the event that the Real Property, or any portion thereof, is not or cannot be used solely 
for very low or low income rental housing, either: (i) the structure(s) shall be redesigned 
and possibly reconstructed and the number of residential units shall be reduced so that 
there is compliance with the City's water metering requirements then in effect, or (ii) the 
owner shall provide additional water meters as needed in order to comply with the City's 
water metering requirements then in effect and owner pay any applicable installation 
and/or capacity-based fees or costs associated with the additional water meters.  The 
City shall be a party to the covenant. 

14.08.160 Conversion of Dwelling Unit to Nonresidential Use. 

 If an existing dwelling unit, or a portion thereof, is converted to a nonresidential use, 
that nonresidential use shall be metered separately from any existing or proposed 
dwelling unit(s). 

14.08.170  Nonresidential Uses – Separate Metering 

 On lots or condominium units that have both residential and nonresidential uses, no 
meter serving a nonresidential use shall also serve a residential use.  No meter serving 
a nonresidential use on any lot or condominium unit shall serve a use on another lot or 
condominium unit. 

14.08.180 Multi-unit Residential and Nonresidential Uses - Irrigation Meters 



7 
 

 The following requirement shall apply to multi-family residential and nonresidential 
use classifications: when a project requires new water service or upgraded water 
service and includes at least 1,000 square feet of irrigated landscaped area a separate 
City-issued irrigation meter shall be installed to measure the use of potable water for 
landscape purposes. 
 
 
SECTION 5. The provisions of this ordinance shall take effect at 12:01 a.m. on January 
1, 2017.  Projects where the application was deemed complete prior to the effective 
date of this ordinance shall not be subject to these requirements.  Projects that were 
deemed complete on or before December 31, 2016 shall continue to process in 
accordance with Santa Barbara Municipal Code Sections 22.04.030 and 22.04.060 as 
those sections existed on the date the project was deemed complete. 



Agenda Item No.  1 
File Code No.  410.01 

 

 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition – Service Award Pins 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the City’s appreciation to 
employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for their years of service through 
November 30, 2016. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City appreciates the loyalty to the community and the dedication to public service that 
are demonstrated by City employees throughout the organization every day.  Since 1980, 
the City Employees’ Recognition Program has recognized length of City Service.  Service 
award pins are presented to employees for every five years of service.  Those employees 
achieving 25 years of service or more are eligible to receive their pins in front of the City 
Council. 
 
Attached is a list of those employees who will be awarded pins for their service through 
November 30, 2016. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: November 2016 Service Awards 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, City Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 
ATTACHMENT 

 

November 2016 SERVICE AWARDS 

November 1, 2016 Council Meeting 

 
5 YEARS 

Myndi Hegeman, Executive Assistant, Airport Department 

Diego Martin, Finance Analyst I, Finance Department 

 

10 YEARS 

Phillip Faulding, Firefighter, Fire Department 

 

15 YEARS  

Ruben Gutierrez, Custodian, Public Works Department 

Todd Johnson, Police Sergeant, Police Department 

 

20 YEARS  

Brenda Craig, Finance Supervisor, Finance Department 

 

25 YEARS  

Mark Howard, Risk Manager, Finance Department 

Michael Johnson, Water Distribution Operator/Emergency Services,  
     Public Works Department 

Anthony Prieto, Streets Maintenance Crew Leader, Public Works Department 





10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
NOV 1 2016 #3 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 18, 2016 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee and Ordinance Committee which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet 
on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Jason Dominguez, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, City 
Clerk Services Manager Sarah Gorman. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Proclamation Honoring The Samarkand's 60th Anniversary, 

October 2016 
 
Action:  Proclamation was presented to Pamela Bigelow and John Campbell, 
representing The Samarkand.  
 



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 
 

 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Item Removed from Agenda 
 
City Administrator Paul Casey stated that the following item was being removed from 
the agenda; it will be resubmitted on a future date:  
 
3. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Approving Sale Of Excess City Land 

Related To The Mason Street Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
and Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute the Land Purchase Agreement, 
Escrow Instructions, and Grant Deed as Approved by the City Attorney for the 
Sale of Certain City Excess Land, Located at 20 West Mason Street, to Stuart 
Rubin in the amount of $2,840,000. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:   

- Members of the Public:  Kate Schwab, Downtown Santa Barbara; Kenneth Loch; 
Peter Marin, Committee for  Social Justice 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 – 12) 
 
The titles of the Ordinances and Resolutions related to the Consent Calendar were 
read. 
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers White/Rowse to approve the Consent Calendar as 

recommended. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 

2. Subject:  Minutes 
 
Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of October 4, 2016. 

 
 Action:  Approved the recommendation. 



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 
 

 
 
4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Authorizing Agreement For The Potential 

Refinancing Of The 2004 Sewer Revenue Bonds (240.03) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Execution and Delivery by the City of 
an Installment Sale Agreement, and a Continuing Disclosure Agreement in 
Connection with the Execution, Authentication and Delivery of Santa Barbara 
Financing Authority Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 (Payable Solely from 
Installment Payments Secured by Net System Revenues of the Wastewater 
Fund of the City of Santa Barbara), and Authorizing Related Actions. 
  
Action: Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5772; Agreement No. 
25,726.   
 

 
5. Subject:  Adoption Of An Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Jon 

Marshall And Melissa Schumacher, Doing Business As Deep Blue Sea 
(570.03) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the 
Waterfront Director to Execute a Lease Agreement with Jon Marshall and 
Melissa Schumacher, Doing Business as Deep Blue Sea, Located at 219 
Stearns Wharf, Suite C, Commencing Upon the Effective Date of the Enabling 
Ordinance. 
  
Action: Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5773; Agreement No. 
25,727.   
 

6. Subject:  Resolution For Acceptance Of Easement For The Montecito Street 
Bridge and Pedestrian Improvements Project (530.04) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara to Accept a Permanent Easement for 
Street Purposes on a Portion of the Real Property Commonly Known as 223 
North Salinas Street; Santa Barbara County Assessor's Parcel Number 017-073-
001. 
 
Action: Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 16-060; Deed No. 61-480; 
(October 18, 2016, report from the Public Works Director).  
  



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 
 

 
7. Subject:  Resolution For Acceptance Of Easement For The Mason Street 

Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by a reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara to Accept a Permanent Easement for 
Street Purposes on a Portion of the Real Property Commonly Known as 101 
State Street; Santa Barbara County Assessor's Parcel Numbers 033-075-011 
and 033-075-016. 
  
Action: Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 16-061; Deed No. 61-481; 
(October 18, 2016, report from the Public Works Director).  
 

8. Subject:  Resolution For Acceptance Of Easements For The Gutierrez 
Street Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara to Acquire and Accept Permanent and 
Temporary Construction Easement Interests, Located at 101 West Gutierrez 
Street, and Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute the Purchase 
Agreement and Related Documents as Necessary, in a Form Approved by the 
City Attorney. 
 
Action: Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 16-062; Deed Nos. 61-
482, 61-483; Agreement No. 25,721  (October 18, 2016, report from the Public 
Works Director).  
 

9. Subject:  Acceptance Of Adult Education Block Grants From Santa Barbara 
City College For Digital Literacy In Support Of Workforce Development And 
Dyslexic Tutoring (570.04) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Library Director to accept a grant of $81,341.83 grant from 

Santa Barbara City College to develop and implement the "One in Five" 
($43,465.77) and "Digital Literacy" ($36,876.06) programs; and  

B. Increase revenue and appropriation in the Library's General Fund, Central 
Library Program by $81,341.83 in Fiscal Year 2017. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (October 18, 2016, report from the 
Library Director). 



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 
 

 
10. Subject:  Contract With Campbell-Hill Aviation Group, LLC For Air Service 

Development Services (560.01) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Airport Director to execute a 
contract with Campbell-Hill Aviation Group, LLC, for specialized air service 
development support for the Santa Barbara Airport, in an amount not to exceed 
$92,500. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 25,722 (October 18, 
2016, report from the Airport Director). 
 

11. Subject:  Approval Of Parcel Map And Execution Of Agreements For 1135 
San Pascual Street (640.08) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute and record Parcel Map Number 20,816, and standard agreements 
relating to the approved subdivision at 1135 San Pascual, and authorize the City 
Engineer to record, upon completion of any required public improvements, a 
recital document stating that the public improvements have been completed and 
that the previously recorded Land Development Agreement may be removed 
from the title document. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement Nos. 25,723; 25,724; and  
25,725 (October 18, 2016, report from the Public Works Director). 
 

 
12. Subject:  Purchase Of Downtown Parking Attendant Kiosk At City Lot 5 

(550.05) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council find that it is in the best interest of the City to 
waive bidding requirements as authorized by Municipal Code Section 4.52.070 L, 
and authorize the General Services Manager to issue a purchase order, to B.I.G. 
Enterprises, Inc., for a pre-fabricated parking attendant kiosk located at 1220 
Chapala Street, City Lot 5, in an amount not to exceed $44,763. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation (October 18, 2016, report from the Public 
Works Director). 

 
 



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 
 

 
NOTICES 
 
13. The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 13, 2016, posted this agenda in the 

Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
14. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Civil Service 

Commission with the resignation of Kathryn McKee. This vacancy will be part of 
the next recruitment. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
 
15. Subject:  Extension Of Interim Emergency Ordinance Prohibiting Non-

Medical Marijuana-Related Businesses (800.07) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt an Interim Emergency Ordinance Of The 
Council Of The City Of Santa Barbara Extending Ordinance No. 5763 to Prohibit 
Non-Medical Marijuana Businesses For 22 Months And 15 Days Or Until 
September 5, 2018. 
  
Documents: 

- October 18, 2016, report from the Community Development Department. 
- Proposed ordinance. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Public comment opened: 2:15 p.m. 
 
The ordinance related to the item was read in full.  

 
 Speakers: 

- Staff:  Project Planner Andrew Bermond, City Attorney Ariel Calonne  
- Members of the Public Bea Melena, Tia Roosendahl, Erik Bjorklund, 

Natasha 
 

 Public comment closed: 2:40 p.m.  
 
 Discussion:  Staff presented the proposed extension of the Interim Emergency 

Ordinance. Council heard the presentation and their questions were answered.   
(Cont’d) 



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 
 

 
15. (Cont’d) 
 
 Motion: 
 Councilmembers Murillo/ Rowse to approve the recommendation; 

Ordinance No. 5774.  
Vote: 

  Unanimous roll call vote. 
 
   
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
16. Subject:  Oversized Vehicle Parking Ordinance (550.01) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code by Adding Section 10.44.220 with Respect to Oversized 
Vehicle Parking, Amending Section 10.44.200 to Eliminate the Term 
"Temporary Recreational Vehicle," and Repealing Section 10.44.205 
Pertaining to Recreational Vehicle Parking; 

 B. Direct the Access Advisory Committee to Study and Report to Staff on 
Options for On-street Disabled Parking; and 

C. Create an Ad Hoc Stakeholder Committee, Including the New Beginnings 
Counseling Center, to Consider Additional Off-street Parking Opportunities 
for Persons Living in Vehicles. 

 
Documents: 

- October 18, 2016, report from the City Attorney. 
- Proposed ordinance. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- March 11, 2016, email from Amanda Staples. 
- October 17, 2016, email from Suzanne Cohen. 
- October 17, 2016, email form Peter Camenzind. 
- October 17, 2016, letter from Graham Lyons. 
- October 18, 2016, email from Grant House. 
- October 18, 2016, statement from Fred Sweeney. 

 
Public comment opened: 3:52 p.m. 
 
The ordinance related to the item was read in full.  
 
 

(Cont’d) 



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 
 

 
16. (Cont’d.) 
 
 Speakers: 

- Staff:  City Attorney Ariel Calonne, Supervising Transportation Engineer 
Derrick Bailey, Police Sergeant Riley Harwood. 

- Members of the Public: Philip Martenez; Karin Jacobson; Deborah Lynch; 
Kristine Schwarz of New Beginnings/Safe Parking; Randal Rieb; Bea 
Molina; Ed Meyers; Diane Barrickman; Fred Sweeney, Upper East 
Association; Peter Marin; Christine Kravetz; Andrea Gross; Michael 
Cotton, SB Adventure Co.; Amy Snyder; Chris Caci; Deborah Barnes, 
Worth Street Reach; Natasha Todorovic; Craig Zimmerman; Anna Marie 
Gott, Allied Neighborhoods Association; Lynne Jahnke; Jim Neuman; 
Steve Metsch; Christie Macias; Richard Palluch; Spencer Cole.  

 
 Public comment closed: 5:06 p.m. 
 
 Discussion:  Staff presented the proposed extension of the Interim Emergency 

Ordinance. Council heard the presentation and their questions were answered.   
 
 Motion: 
 Councilmembers Rowse/Hotchkiss to approve the recommended action, 

including directing City Attorney to include confirmation of  modification of 
ordinance presented at meeting  and conforming finding 1F to the correct 
dollar numbers found on page 30 of the PowerPoint presentation in the 
adoption of the ordinance.   

Vote: 
  Unanimous roll call vote.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
 
17. Subject:  Consideration Of A Vision Zero Policy To Reduce Fatal And 

Severe Transportation-Related Collisions 
 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report regarding a potential City policy on Vision Zero;  
B. Direct staff to return with a resolution to adopt a Vision Zero policy; and 
C. Authorize staff to submit a 2016 Caltrans Sustainable Transportation 

Planning Grant to support Vision Zero plan development and community 
education. 

 
(Cont’d) 



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 
 

 
17. (Cont’d.) 

 
Documents: 

- October 18, 2016, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- October 8, 2016, letter from Eva Inbar and Eve Sanford. 
- October 17, 2016, email from Ed France.  
- October 18, 2016, letter from Cary Matsuoka, Santa Barbara Unified 

School District. 
 

 Speakers: 
- Staff: Principal Transportation Planner Rob Dayton, Supervising 

Transportation Engineer Derrick Bailey. 
- Members of the Public: Kent Epperson, Traffic Solutions; Kim Stanley; 

Eve Sanford, Santa Barbara Bicycle Coalition; Jennifer Cregor; Barry 
Remis; Joey Johasz-Lukowski, SB Bike; Eva Inbar; Cameron Sean Gray, 
Community Environmental Council.  

 
 Motion: 
 Councilmembers White/Hart to approve the staff recommendations.  

Vote: 
  Unanimous vote. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
   
 - Councilmember Hotchkiss reported on his and Mayor Schneider’s attendance at 

the moving Vietnam Veteran’s Wall. 
 - Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at the Westside Community 

Cleanup, on her attendance at the Neighborhood Advisory Council with 
Councilmember Dominguez, on her attendance at Legal Aid’s Chowder event; 
and provided information about the Youth Council’s speakout on marijuana on 
October 24, 2016, 6:00 p.m. at the Davis Center. 

 - Councilmember Hart reported on his attendance at the Braille Institute’s White 
Cane Day, and reported on his attendance with Mayor Schneider and 
Councilmember Murillo at the COAST annual meeting.  

 - Councilmember Rowse reported on his attendance at the Downtown Parking 
Committee meeting. 

 - Councilmember White reported on his attendance at the Central Coast 
Sustainability Summit.  

 - Councilmember Dominquez reported on his attendance at the Eastside Cleanup 
at Ortega Park.   



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 
 

 - Mayor Schneider reported on her attendance at the Harbor Festival; and reported 
that the City will be hosting representatives from Toba, Japan celebrating a 50th 
anniversary of a Sister City relationship.  



10/18/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 11 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 6:28 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SARAH GORMAN 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 



Agenda Item No.  5 
File Code No.  520.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Investigative and Internal Operations Division, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appropriation Of Auto Anti-Theft Funds For Advertising And Special 

Projects 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council appropriate $75,000 in the Fiscal Year 2017 Police Department Asset 
Seizure and Miscellaneous Grants Fund from available reserves for advertising and 
special auto anti-theft projects.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Automobile theft and burglary theft from automobiles continue to victimize Santa 
Barbara residents and tourists that visit our community. Public media prevention 
outreach and focused enforcement are strategies that help mitigate these types of 
crimes.  
 
Auto Anti-Theft and Deterrence Funds derive from a portion of vehicle registration fees 
restricted to these types of theft-mitigating strategies.  Advertising and projects related to 
deterring auto theft are approved uses of this money. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The Police Auto Anti-Theft and Deterrence Fund has reserve funds available for this 
purchase.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Alex Altavilla, Police Captain/LSP 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Lori Luhnow, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  570.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Services Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Neil And Judi 

Bruskin, Doing Business As Mother Stearns Candy Company 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the Waterfront 
Director to Execute a Lease Agreement with Neil and Judi Bruskin, a Sole 
Proprietorship, Doing Business As Mother Stearns Candy Company, 219-B Stearns 
Wharf, Commencing Upon the Effective Date of the Enabling Ordinance. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Neil and Judi Bruskin purchased Mother Stearns Candy Company and assumed the 
lease through an assignment process in May 2006. The Bruskins have increased 
overall sales by over 23% from $393,103 in calendar year 2007 to $481,618 in calendar 
year 2015. The existing lease was entered into in December 2006 and expires on 
November 30, 2016. 
 
The business lease terms of the proposed lease are as follows: 
 
• Term: Five-year initial term with one, five-year option. 
• Base Rent: Average base rent of $2,302 per month ($5.87 p.s.f.). 
• Annual Rent Adjustment: Cost of Living increases based on the Consumer 

Price Index (CPI). 
• Percentage Rent: 10% of gross receipts. 
 
Mother Stearns Candy Company is considered by the Department to be a tenant in 
good standing as they are always prompt with rent payments, and are an active 
member of the Stearns Wharf Business Association, and have no lease compliance 
problems on file. 
 
The Harbor Commission recommended approval of the lease agreement for Mother 
Stearns Candy at the August 18, 2016, meeting. 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Neil And Judi Bruskin, Doing 
Business As Mother Stearns Candy Company 
November 1, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
ATTACHMENT: Site Plan 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian Bosse, Business Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



jprusinski
Text Box
ATTACHMENT



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE WATERFRONT DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH NEIL AND JUDI BRUSKIN, A SOLE 
PROPRIETORSHIP, DOING BUSINESS AS MOTHER 
STEARNS CANDY COMPANY, 219-B STEARNS WHARF, 
COMMENCING UPON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE 
ENABLING ORDINANCE. 
 
 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of 
the City of Santa Barbara, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Approving and authorizing execution of a 5-Year Lease and one 5-year 
option with Neil and Judy Bruskin, doing business as Mother Stearns Candy 
Company, Effective December 8, 2016, is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  A Resolution Denying The Appeals Of Pete Dal Bello And Of Jarrett  

  Gorin And Upholding The Decision Of The Planning Commission 
   Regarding Approval Of A Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective  

  Dispensary At 118 N. Milpas Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Denying the Appeals of Pete Dal Bello and of Jarrett Gorin and Upholding the 
Decision of the Planning Commission Granting Approval of a Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit at 118 North Milpas Street, pursuant to Council’s 
direction of May 10, 2016. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Council denied the appeal and directed staff to prepare written findings confirming 
Council’s oral findings for approval of a storefront collective medical marijuana dispensary 
at 118 North Milpas Street on May 10, 2016.  The Resolution of Findings is attached. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Tava Ostrenger, Assistant City Attorney 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DENYING THE 
APPEALS OF PETE DAL BELLO AND OF 
JARRETT GORIN AND UPHOLDING THE 
DECISION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
GRANTING APPROVAL OF A MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE 
DISPENSARY PERMIT AT 118 NORTH MILPAS 
STREET  

 WHEREAS, Ryan Howe applied for a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Permit for a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary located at 
118 N. Milpas, in an existing commercial building.  Interior tenant improvements, 
security plan, minor exterior alterations, and landscaping are proposed.  Public right-of-
way improvements are proposed to replace the existing sidewalk and driveway curb cut 
with new sidewalk, parkway planter, and curb; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 20, 2016, the Staff Hearing Officer (SHO) conducted a 
duly noticed public hearing.  The SHO considered written and oral public comment and 
approved the permit application with several additional Conditions of Approval; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 28, 2016, the SHO approval was appealed to the 
Planning Commission by Pete Dal Bello asserting the following: 

1. A medical marijuana dispensary should not be allowed in this neighborhood 
2. The project will have negative impacts in an area with crime and safety problems 
3. The project will have negative impacts to on-street parking 
4. Sufficient notification was not completed prior to the hearings; and 

 WHEREAS, on March 17, 2016 the Planning Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing.  The Planning Commission considered the concerns of the 
appellant, the written and oral public comment, denied the appeal and approved the 
application with a 7-0 vote, with no changes or additions to the SHO Conditions of 
Approval; and 

 WHEREAS, on March 28, 2016, two appeals of the Planning Commission 
approval were filed, by Pete Dal Bello, and by Jarrett Gorin, on behalf of Natasha 
Todorovic and Santos Guzman, asserting the following: 

1. The project will have negative impacts in an area with crime and safety problems 
2. Management members have not been fully identified in the application 
3. Inadequate parking will have negative impacts to on-street parking 



2 
 

4. The project is not exempt from environmental review due to significant traffic 
impacts 

5. Sufficient notification was not completed prior to the hearings 
6. The project will have adverse impacts to the neighborhood; and 

 WHEREAS, on May 9, 2016, the City Council conducted a duly noticed site visit 
during which it inquired into the proposed exterior lighting and the number of onsite staff 
persons at the proposed dispensary; and 

 WHEREAS, on May 10, 2016, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public 
hearing on the appeal; and 

 WHEREAS, after consideration of all the evidence presented (both written and 
oral), as well as the public testimony received, and after deliberation by the Council 
Members, the City Council voted 4-3 (Council Members Dominguez, Rowse, White 
dissenting) to deny the appeal of the Project and uphold the decision of the Planning 
Commission to grant approval of the Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Permit, and direct the preparation of written findings consistent with the oral 
findings made by Council; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
into these findings. 

 SECTION 2.  All written, graphic and oral materials and information submitted to 
the Planning Commission and the City Council by City staff, the public, and the parties 
are hereby accepted as part of the record of proceedings.  The facts and findings in the 
May 10, 2016 Council Agenda Report, attached as Exhibit A, are incorporated into this 
Resolution and determined to be true. 

 SECTION 3.  The Council carefully reviewed the evidence it obtained during the 
site visit and public hearing and finds and determines as follows: 

A. Location Criteria.  The Council finds the project complies with the 
limitations on location of a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary given in 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 28.80.050. 

 
B. Criteria for Review of Collective Dispensary Applications.  The Council has 

considered the following criteria pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 
28.80.070.B: 

  1.   That the Collective Dispensary permit and the operation of the 
proposed Dispensary will be consistent with the intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 



3 
 

1996 and the SB 420 Statutes for providing medical marijuana to qualified patients and 
primary caregivers, and with the provisions of this Chapter and the Municipal Code, 
including the application submittal and operating requirements herein. 

  The operations plan, security plans, and signed affidavits indicate 
compliance with, State law, the dispensary ordinance (SBMC Chap. 28.80), and the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 

  2.   That the proposed location of the Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensary is not identified by the City Chief of Police as an area of 
increased or high crime activity. 

  The location is not identified by the City Police Department as an area of 
increased or high crime activity. 

  3.   For those applicants who have operated other Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collective Dispensaries within the City, that there have not been significant 
numbers of calls for police service, crimes or arrests in the area of the applicant’s 
former location. 

  The applicant has not operated any other Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensaries in the City. 

  4.  That issuance of a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Permit for the Collective Dispensary size requested is appropriate to meet needs of the 
community for access to medical marijuana. 

 The proposed interior tenant improvements in the existing 2,264 square foot one-
story commercial building will create separate areas for waiting, dispensing, office, and 
secured storage.  The proposed size is appropriate to safely and efficiently operate a 
dispensary to meet the needs of the community. 

  5.   That issuance of the Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Permit would serve needs of City residents within a proximity to this 
location. 

  The dispensary would be located in the Milpas neighborhood and would 
be centrally located among the neighborhoods on the east side of the City.  Of the five 
allowed dispensary location areas within the City, the Milpas Street area is the only one 
located on the east side of the City.  The location on the Milpas Street thoroughfare 
would provide easy access, and is reasonably close to Metropolitan Transit District 
(MTD) bus stops. 



4 
 

  6.   That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter or 
any local or state law, statute, rule, or regulation, and no significant nuisance issues or 
problems are likely or anticipated, and that compliance with other applicable 
requirements of the City’s Zoning Ordinance will be accomplished. 

  The proposed location is not prohibited, and it complies with the location 
limitations in SBMC §28.80.050.  The parcel is commercially zoned and located in the 
area of Milpas Street where dispensaries are allowed.  The commercial building has 
good public visibility and no significant nuisance issues or problems are likely or 
anticipated with regard to this location. 

  7.   That the Dispensary’s operations plan, its site plan, its floor plan, the 
proposed hours of operation, and a security plan have incorporated features necessary 
to assist in reducing potential crime-related problems and as specified in the operating 
requirements section. These features may include, but are not limited to, security on-
site; procedure for allowing entry; openness to surveillance and control of the premises; 
the perimeter, and surrounding properties; reduction of opportunities for congregating 
and obstructing public ways and neighboring property; illumination of exterior areas; and 
limiting furnishings and features that encourage loitering and nuisance behavior. 

  The application proposes physical improvements shown on the site plan 
consisting of security cameras, and a see-through fence to control the exterior of the 
property.  The floor plan is configured to provide a large waiting area to reduce the 
chance of loitering outside, high quality doors and locks, a secure wall and controlled 
access between the waiting and dispensing areas, and provides a built-in vault for 
secure storage.  The operations plan gives detailed descriptions of the means by which 
the proposed operation will comply with requirements.  Members are informed, and 
must sign a membership agreement which lists requirements and prohibitions.  The 
security plan provides for two security guards on site during business hours, a 
registered alarm system (required by ordinance), and interior and exterior security 
cameras with recordings secured in the vault. 

  8.   That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into the 
Dispensary security plan or consistently taken to successfully control the 
establishment’s patrons’ conduct resulting in disturbances, vandalism, crowd control 
inside or outside the premises, traffic control problems, marijuana use in public, or 
creation of a public or private nuisance, or interference of the operation of another 
business. 

  Two security guards are to be on site during business hours.  The security 
guards’ responsibilities will include screening new and prospective members, monitoring 
and controlling the conduct of members and removal of graffiti.  The application 
proposes a “zero tolerance” clause in the membership agreement regarding members 



5 
 

and employees loitering and/or using cannabis within 200 feet of the dispensary.  This 
form includes items regarding courteous behavior, being respectful to neighboring 
businesses and residences, not littering or loitering, and not medicating in or around the 
premises.  An updated membership agreement form will include a zero tolerance 
clause, and the proposed onsite signage will address member behavior.    

  9.   That the Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to 
have no potentially adverse effect on the health, peace, or safety of persons living or 
working in the surrounding area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, or contribute to 
a public nuisance, and that the Dispensary will generally not result in repeated nuisance 
activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, marijuana use in 
public, harassment of passerbys, excessive littering, excessive loitering, illegal parking, 
excessive loud noises, especially late at night or early in the morning hours, lewd 
conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 

  The proposed security plan and operations plan are found to be sufficient 
to avoid nuisance behavior and adverse effects on health, peace, and safety of persons 
in the surrounding area.  Adequate lighting exists, and security cameras will be placed 
inside and outside the building.  One of the two security guards will patrol the exterior of 
the premises at least once per hour, and ensure the street and sidewalk are free of 
loitering, and that other businesses are not negatively affected.  The patrolling guard will 
watch for alcohol or cannabis use, address nuisance issues, pick up litter, and report 
graffiti.  Hours of operation are limited to 8 AM to 6 PM, Monday through Saturday.  
Operation of the Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary shall be limited to 
serving no more than 150 qualified patient and/or primary caregiver members per day.    
Therefore, the dispensary operation is not likely to have adverse effects on the health, 
peace, or safety of persons living or working in the surrounding area; overly burden a 
specific neighborhood; or contribute to a public nuisance.  

  10.   That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition imposed by a 
City-issued permit, or any provision of any other local or state law, regulation, or order, 
or any condition imposed by permits issued in compliance with those laws, will not be 
violated. 

  No violations of municipal code provisions, conditions of any City-issued 
permits, or any other local or state law, regulation or order, or any condition imposed by 
permits issued in compliance with any local or state law have been identified.  The Staff 
Hearing Officer has the authority to suspend or revoke the Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensary Permit pursuant to SBMC Section 28.80.120 if it appears to that 
Officer that the Dispensary permittee has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 
28.80, or the dispensary is being operated in a manner which violates the operational 



6 
 

requirements or operational plan required by the Dispensary Ordinance, or it is operated 
in a manner which conflicts with state law. 

  11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of material fact 
or has omitted to state a material fact in the application for a permit. 

  The applicant, Ryan Howe, signed a statement that all information in the 
application is true.  Staff has not discovered any false statements or omissions of 
material facts in the application materials. 

  12.   That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or 
deceptive business acts or practices with respect to the operation of another business 
within the City. 

  The applicant passed the required background check.  The applicant 
included a signed statement in his application that he has not engaged in unlawful, 
fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business acts or practices with respect to the operation 
of another business within the City. 
 

C. California Environmental Quality Act Determination.  The Council finds 
that the project qualifies for an exemption from further environmental review under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code 21082.3 and CEQA 
Guidelines Sections 15301 and 15183).  The City Council environmental findings 
adopted for the 2011 General Plan remain applicable for this project. 

 SECTION 4.  The City Council grants approval of the Medical Marijuana 
Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit with the proposed improvements to the building 
and site as depicted on the set of architectural plans dated September 23, 2015 and 
presented to the City Council on May 10, 2016, subject to the conditions of approval 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

 

 



Agenda Item No.13 

File Code No.  640.07 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2016 

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 

SUBJECT: Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North 
Milpas Street 

RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  

A. Deny the appeals of Jarrett Gorin and Pete Dal Bello and uphold the Planning
Commission’s approval of a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit;

B. Direct staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the outcome of
the appeal.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The proposed project is a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary 
(dispensary) in an existing commercial building at 118 North Milpas Street. Interior 
tenant improvements, minor exterior alterations, and landscaping are proposed. On 
January 20, 2016, the Staff Hearing Officer (SHO) approved a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary Permit, with conditions. The SHO approval was appealed to the Planning 
Commission by Pete Dal Bello. On March 17, 2016, the Planning Commission denied the 
appeal and upheld the SHO’s approval of the application.   

On March 28, 2016, Jarrett Gorin and Pete Dal Bello, respectively, filed separate appeals 
of the Planning Commission’s decision. The two appeal letters to City Council generally 
express similar concerns about crime and safety, parking, and public notification of 
hearings. The current appeals raise a new issue, questioning the adequacy of staff’s 
environmental determination regarding potential traffic and parking impacts. Based on 
the limited scope of work for the proposed commercial use in an existing commercial 
building, the staff environmental analyst determined that the project qualifies for an 
exemption under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  

Staff supports the application because it is consistent with zoning ordinance 
requirements established in Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) Chapter 28.80 and 
recommends that Council deny the appeals and uphold the Planning Commission’s 
approval of the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit.   

EXHIBIT A



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Background/SHO Review 
SBMC Chapter 28.80 (Medical Cannabis Dispensaries) was originally adopted in 2008 
and revised in 2010. The ordinance specifies that a total of three dispensaries are 
allowed in the City, and a maximum of one may be permitted within each of the five 
distinct areas specifically identified by street blocks. The subject property at 118 North 
Milpas Street is within the allowed locations for the Milpas Street area, defined as the 00 
to 400 blocks of North Milpas Street. In addition to meeting the location limitations, the 
SHO must review an operations plan for the dispensary and consider 12 criteria in 
determining whether to grant or deny a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit (SBMC 
Sections 28.80.060 and 28.80.070). These 12 criteria, along with staff’s evaluation of 
each, are found in the SHO Staff Report (Attachment 2).   
 
The project location is a 4,449 square foot lot, zoned C-2 (Commercial), with an existing 
2,264 square foot building. The site has no onsite parking and is legal, non-conforming 
to the parking requirements. Under current zoning standards, a 2,264 square foot 
building would require nine onsite parking spaces for a general commercial use.   
 
The SHO approved the application on January 20, 2016, with added conditions of 
approval. A summary of the SHO conditions of approval that were added at the hearing 
include: 

• Elimination of an existing curb cut in front of the site to provide additional on-
street parking for one or two vehicles 

• Operating Plan shall be amended as follows: 
 A minimum of two security guards on duty during operating hours 
 Security camera monitoring shall have 24-hour remote live feed offsite 
 Explain that a member may obtain medical marijuana only after an initial waiting 

period 
 Provide a complete list of available products, merchandise, and services to City 

staff  
 Marketing concepts will be conducted at offsite locations 
 Clarify what rules of conduct will be displayed in the waiting room 
 Post inside the dispensary a State Law Compliance Warning 
 All patients and caregivers enter through the front doors outside of the fenced 

area 
 Dispensary Management shall place trash outside of the fenced area on pickup 

day 

• Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as follows: 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 3 

 

 Add zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using cannabis or alcohol on 
the property. In the event of an infraction, membership shall be terminated 

 Add that membership is limited to only one collective within the City 

• Interior Signage with rules, state law, restrictions regarding minors, and hours shall 
be approved by City staff 

The full text of the conditions appears in SHO Resolution 006-16 and in Planning 
Commission Resolution 010-16 (Attachment 5).   
Planning Commission Review of SHO Appeal 
On January 28, 2016, Mr. Dal Bello filed an appeal of the SHO’s approval, citing 
concerns with allowing a marijuana dispensary in this neighborhood, crime and safety in 
the area, impacts to on-street parking, and lack of adequate notification of hearings. On 
March 14, 2016, three days prior to the hearing, Mr. Dal Bello submitted new 
information to support his appeal, including an internet article presenting data showing 
that marijuana dispensaries have very high vehicle trip generation rates. Transportation 
Planning staff determined that the data were not comparable to the proposed project 
because the data were limited in scope and were collected in Colorado at locations that 
dispense marijuana for recreational use and where it is legal to purchase without a 
physician’s recommendation. 
 
The Planning Commissioners visited the site on March 15, 2016, at which time the 
applicant, Ryan Howe, explained the proposed configuration of the floor plan and site 
plan, and security features. At the hearing on March 17, 2016, the Planning 
Commission heard Mr. Dal Bello’s appeal issues and comments from various members 
of the public in support of the appeal and evaluated the application as approved by the 
SHO with conditions of approval (Attachment 6, Planning Commission Minutes). The 
application consists of the following components: 
   

• the locational limitations requiring a visible, storefront location within an allowed 
area of the City; 

• the operations plan that describes and sets forth rules for the operational and 
management activities of the dispensary, such as admitting members, informing 
and controlling member conduct, and dispensing medical cannabis;  

• proposed improvements to the building, which involve interior floor plan changes 
to create separate waiting and dispensing areas and provide management office 
spaces and secure storage; 

• exterior site alterations such as a fence to secure the property, outdoor 
courtyard, trash enclosure, security cameras, and landscape plan; and 

• public right-of-way improvement to replace the existing driveway apron with a 
curb.   

The Planning Commission found that the application complies with the locational 
limitations and the criteria for permit issuance denied the appeal, and approved the 
application with no changes or additions to the SHO’s conditions of approval.     



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 4 

 

Council Appeal Issues  
On March 28, 2016, the City received two appeals of the Planning Commission’s 
decision of March 17, 2016. Jarrett Gorin submitted an appeal on behalf of Natasha 
Todorovic and Santos Guzman. Pete Dal Bello submitted an appeal that expresses 
concerns similar to those in his appeal to the Planning Commission. The discussion that 
follows is organized by appeal issue areas.     
 
Negative Impacts to Neighborhood Safety 
Mr. Dal Bello provided a report listing police calls for service at the vicinity of the subject 
property to demonstrate that this location has crime issues even without an operating 
dispensary. Attached to his appeal letter is a report of 911 calls dated January 25, 2008 
to January 21, 2015 (Attachment 1). None of these calls were related to the current 
dispensary applicant or new property owner (since May 28, 2015), and a number of the 
calls were unfounded or cancelled. In order to issue a dispensary permit, consideration 
must be given to Criterion 2 of SBMC Section 28.87.070.B, that the proposed location is 
not identified by the City Chief of Police as an area of increased or high crime activity. 
The City Police Department confirmed that 118 North Milpas Street is not an area of 
increased or high crime activity, and that the report submitted by Mr. Dal Bello is 
evidence of this. Staff considers the proposed operations and security plans to be 
responsive to safety concerns and consistent with Criteria 7, 8, and 9 as described in 
the SHO Staff Report (Attachment 2). 
 
Management Members of Collective 
Mr. Dal Bello expresses concern about who may be participating in the management of 
the proposed dispensary and their intentions to operate for profit. The applicant, Ryan 
Howe, is the sole management member identified in the application submitted to the 
City and has satisfied the Filing Requirements of SBMC Section 28.80.060.F. Staff has 
no confirmed knowledge or information to the contrary beyond receiving an anonymous 
letter the day before the Planning Commission appeal hearing (see attachment to Mr. 
Dal Bello’s appeal letter, Attachment 1). 
 
Inadequate Parking 
City archive records show that the project site has never had any permitted onsite 
parking. The existing site contains a 2,264 square foot, one-story commercial building, 
and previously had a delivery driveway for a food cooperative, as noted on plans dated 
1978. Prior tenants may have parked on the site; however, the configuration of the site 
makes onsite parking infeasible, as commercial parking is not allowed to back out onto 
Milpas Street, and there is not enough space between the building and property line to 
turn a vehicle around. A 2015 building permit for repairs and accessibility improvements 
to the building required installation of a landscaping planter to block driveway access to 
prevent vehicles from entering and therefore having to back out.   
Both appellants are concerned that, by not providing any onsite parking, this operation 
will have negative impacts to the availability of surrounding on-street parking for 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 5 

 

businesses and residents. Similar concerns were expressed by 12 of the 23 public 
comments received for the SHO hearing.   
The Medical Cannabis Dispensary ordinance (SBMC §28.80.080.D.6) specifically states 
that “Storefront Collective Dispensaries shall be considered a commercial use relative to 
the parking requirements imposed by Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section (SBMC 
§28.90.100.I).” The requirement under this section is one (1) parking space per 250 
square feet of net floor area of the building. This would be the same required number of 
parking spaces for any office or commercial use. 
The previous retail uses onsite, and the proposed dispensary use of this building, fall 
under the commercial parking requirement of one (1) parking space per 250 square feet 
of net floor area. Previous uses and the proposed use are allowed commercial uses in 
the C-2 Zone. Since both prior and proposed uses are commercial, provision SBMC 
§28.90.001.N in the parking ordinance regarding change of use does not apply. The 
current building, if built today, would require nine parking spaces; however, this property 
is legal, nonconforming with no onsite parking. The parking ordinance provides that 
properties that are nonconforming to the required number of parking spaces may 
continue to be used, except that additional parking must be provided if the building 
square footage is increased, or the use of the building is changed to a use that requires 
more parking (SBMC §28.90.001.B). This application does not involve new square 
footage or a change in use that requires more parking; therefore, no new parking is 
required. Furthermore, any allowed commercial use that occupies this building would 
have the same parking situation. There is also a requirement to provide parking for 
bicycles, and for this site the requirement is one (1) bicycle space. The site has space to 
accommodate bicycle parking, and the proposal includes bicycle racks for four bicycles. 
During the application review process, the applicant consulted with staff about closing 
the existing driveway in front of his property in order to provide more on-street parking. 
Because of the expense, he did not include this work in his proposal but said he would 
consider doing it once the dispensary was operating. The elimination of the curb cut and 
installation of new curb would result in the addition of one or two on-street public 
parking spaces, depending upon vehicle size and driver behavior. The SHO made 
completion of this work with a Public Works permit a condition of approval, to which the 
applicant agreed.  
Criterion 8 of SBMC §28.80.070.B. refers to controlling patrons’ conduct with regard to 
traffic control problems or interference of the operation of another business. Criterion 9 
refers to having no adverse effect, not overly burdening a specific neighborhood, and 
not resulting in nuisance activities, including illegal parking. Staff believes that Criteria 8 
and 9 can be satisfied because the proposed use will have a limited number of 
members who must be “qualified patients” or “primary caregivers”; trips to the site will 
be spread out throughout the day, consistent with other commercial retail uses that 
could occupy the space; and shared public parking for all commercial uses along the 
Milpas Street corridor continues to exist. In addition, the project will provide one or two 
new on-street public parking spaces for use by all businesses in this area.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 6 

 

Inadequate Environmental Review and Traffic Control Problems 
Based on the limited scope of work and the small size of the building, staff determined 
that the project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from further environmental review 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15301(a) for 
minor alterations to existing facilities. The project involves a commercial tenant 
improvement with minor interior and exterior alterations to the existing commercial 
building and minor site improvements and landscaping at the site, and involves no 
expansion of use.   
The appellants contest the adequacy of staff’s environmental review and use of a 
Categorical Exemption from further CEQA review, asserting that: (1) an Initial Study and 
technical traffic study by a qualified traffic engineer is needed; (2) the proposed 
dispensary use represents an expansion of use and therefore does not qualify under the 
exemption category’s criteria for “negligible or no expansion of use” (Guidelines 
§15301); and (3) an exception to use of the categorical exemption applies per CEQA 
Guidelines §15300.2 due to the reasonable possibility of a significant traffic effect due to 
unusual circumstances.  
The staff CEQA exemption determination is based on a preliminary review for 
exemption process as identified in CEQA Guidelines §15061. The traffic analysis 
concluding no significant impact that supports the CEQA exemption determination was 
conducted by the City’s Transportation Division (described in further detail below). The 
traffic analysis used City analytic procedures and criteria, and a further traffic study by a 
traffic consultant is not required for this project. 
The use of Categorical Exemption §15301 is not precluded by an exception under 
§15300.2.c as described by Mr. Gorin in his appeal letter because the project does not 
involve the “reasonable possibility of a significant environmental effect due to unusual 
circumstances.” The fact that this property, which was developed in the 1940s, has no 
onsite parking is not an unusual circumstance in the City. The City frequently processes 
applications for tenant improvements for buildings built with less than the required 
parking. The first parking ordinance to require parking for all commercial and industrial 
uses in the City was adopted in 1957. Many older commercial properties in the City 
have fewer onsite parking spaces than required under current requirements. The project 
use is a retail use for purposes of environmental impact evaluation, and the site, 
neighborhood, and proposed use do not constitute an unusual circumstance that 
triggers the exception to the exemption. 
The use of the existing commercial property by another commercial tenant will not have 
a significant environmental effect. Transportation staff consider medical marijuana 
collective dispensaries to be a retail land use for purposes of traffic analysis.  
Because the previous use was also retail and there is no proposed expansion of the 
building, the trip generation was projected to be the same as the previous use (5 AM 
peak hour trips and 7 PM peak hour trips). Even if the use of the building was proposed 
to change from retail to the highest possible trip-generating uses for this area based on 
the City Traffic Model (commercial services during the AM peak and restaurant use 
during the PM peak), the net increase in traffic would be 12 AM peak trips and 15 PM 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 7 

 

peak trips. Distributing those trips to the street network would not use one percent or 
more of the intersection capacity at any of the 27 intersections anticipated to be 
impacted in 2030. Therefore, even assuming a worst-case scenario and converting to 
the highest trip-generating use for this area would not result in a project specific traffic 
impact. 
The appellants reference trip generation data from four different recreational marijuana 
dispensaries in the suburban Denver, Colorado area. (Trips were counted for each of 
the four recreational dispensaries in September 2015. The average AM peak hour trip 
generation rates for the four dispensaries ranged from 8-75 trips per thousand square 
feet, and the average PM peak hour trip generation rate ranged from 11-125 trips per 
thousand square feet.) Two of the four locations studied were reported to have 
substantially higher trip generation than the others and substantially higher rates than 
any trip generation rates found within the City of Santa Barbara Traffic Model. Trip 
generation for recreational marijuana dispensaries in the suburban Denver area is not 
comparable to trip generation for medical marijuana collective dispensaries in the City. 
The proposed dispensary would have a limited number of patrons qualified for receiving 
medical marijuana; limited traffic generation, with trip-generating characteristics similar 
to other retail uses; and traffic spread through the day and not generating substantial 
peak-hour employee or customer traffic. 
Permitted dispensaries similar to the proposed dispensary previously operated in the 
City from about 2008 to 2011. City staff are unaware of any traffic-related or parking-
related issues or complaints from operations of the previous permitted dispensaries.   
Based on the above analysis, staff has determined that the project qualifies for a 
Categorical Exemption under CEQA Guidelines §15301 for the operation and minor 
alteration of existing facilities.  
The project also qualifies for a CEQA exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 
15183, for projects consistent with the General Plan and zoning. The project is within 
the scope of analysis for the General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR), which 
evaluated the potential environmental effects from citywide development to the year 
2030. The traffic analysis included baseline trips associated with an occupied retail use 
on the project site. The traffic effects of future growth considered new square footage 
and new residential units and also included assumptions to recognize that, over time, 
existing businesses turn over. The General Plan allows for retail uses along this corridor 
as well as the adaptive reuse of buildings, which the project is proposing. The City 
Council environmental findings for adoption of the 2011 General Plan identified 
significant cumulative traffic impacts of citywide growth and determined the traffic 
impacts acceptable in light of overriding considerations of Plan benefits. These Council 
findings remain applicable for this project.   
A CEQA determination finding that the project qualifies for a categorical exemption from 
further CEQA review under CEQA Guidelines §15301 and a statutory exemption under 
Guidelines §15183 is identified in the attached Certificate of Determination for the 
project.  



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 8 

 

Mr. Gorin’s letter also asserts that required findings cannot be made regarding Criterion 
8 regarding “traffic control problems.” Staff’s analysis indicates that the proposed project 
is not expected to result in traffic control problems.  
 
Failure to Provide Public Notice 
Mr. Dal Bello mentions that his family owns two properties within 300 feet of the project 
site but did not receive notices of public hearings. Staff confirmed that proper 
notification was provided in accordance with the Brown Act, and with City requirements 
in SBMC §28.87.380 (Notice of Hearing), and consistent with Government Code 
Sections 65090 and 65091. The application was reviewed during public hearings at the 
Architectural Board of Review (ABR) Consent Agenda, the SHO, and the Planning 
Commission. Ten days prior to each of these hearings, notices were mailed to owners 
of property within 300 feet of the project site and to interested parties, and a notification 
sign was posted at the site. Five to six days prior to the ABR and SHO hearings, 
meeting agendas were posted at 630 Garden Street and on the City website. Seven 
days prior to the Planning Commission hearing, the meeting agenda was posted at City 
Hall and on the City website.  Twelve days prior to the SHO hearing, and 13 days prior 
to the Planning Commission hearing, legal ads appeared in the Santa Barbara News-
Press.   
The mailing lists in the City’s project file show that notices were properly sent to the two 
Dal Bello-owned properties prior to the ABR, SHO, and Planning Commission hearings. 
Mr. Dal Bello was also added to the mailing list as an interested party for the SHO 
hearing as a result of making public comment at the ABR hearing. Notices of all three 
hearings were also mailed to the Milpas Community Association, and notices of SHO 
and Planning Commission hearings were mailed to the City’s Neighborhood Advisory 
Council. Mailed notification to neighboring tenants is not required or City policy; 
however, the City does provide an “additional noticing method” via a large yellow 
“Notice of Development” sign on the project site. This sign has been posted 
continuously at the front of the site and was in place at least ten days prior to the ABR, 
SHO, and Planning Commission hearings.   
 
Non-Compliance with Criterion 9 (Adverse Effects to Neighborhood) 
Criterion 9 is one of the 12 criteria for consideration in determining whether to grant or 
deny a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit. Relative to the other criteria, Criterion 9 
is general in nature:  

“That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse 
effect on the health, peace, or safety of persons living or working in the 
surrounding area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, or contribute to a public 
nuisance, and that the Dispensary will generally not result in repeated nuisance 
activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, marijuana use 
in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, excessive loitering, illegal 
parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night or early in the morning 
hours, lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests.” 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 9 

 

Mr. Gorin’s letter expresses concerns that the proposed dispensary will generate traffic 
and associated parking demand at a higher rate than the former stereo store/smoke 
shop tenant in the building. Further, he asserts that a substantial increase in parking 
demand in this already heavily congested area would have an adverse effect, and no 
basis is provided to establish how the Planning Commission determined otherwise. 
Criterion 9 asks the decision-maker to determine if the proposed dispensary is likely to 
have adverse effects. Staff’s opinion is that the application’s proposed security 
measures are robust, and the controls on members described in the SHO Staff Report 
(Attachments 2 and 9), along with the additional conditions of approval in the Planning 
Commission resolution (Attachment 6) indicate that the dispensary would likely have no 
adverse effects on the health, peace, or safety of persons living or working in the 
surrounding area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, or contribute to a public 
nuisance. 
It should be noted that the dispensary ordinance provides for suspension or revocation 
of issued permits (SBMC §28.80.120.C) if any ordinance requirements have been 
violated. The ordinance also provides for annual review of operating dispensaries for full 
compliance with operational and recordkeeping requirements (SBMC §28.80.120.B). 
Since no dispensaries have been permitted and operational under these provisions 
since the ordinance was amended in 2010, staff has not yet conducted such an annual 
review. However, staff has prepared a checklist of all the provisions in the ordinance to 
be reviewed during an inspection and is proposing a fee in the Fiscal Year 2017 Fee 
Resolution to reimburse the City for the review. If noncompliance is found, staff may 
initiate suspension or revocation of the permit at a hearing by the Staff Hearing Officer. 
Conclusion 
It is staff’s position that the Planning Commission gave appropriate consideration to the 
appeal issues, the locational requirements, and the 12 criteria for issuance of a permit 
(Attachment 9), and that appropriate environmental review was completed. Staff 
recommends that Council deny the appeals and uphold the Planning Commission’s 
approval of the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit with the findings and conditions of 
approval in Planning Commission Resolution 010-16. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeals Of Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit At 118 North Milpas Street  
May 10, 2016 
Page 10 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Appeal Letters from Pete Dal Bello dated March 27, 2016 and Jarrett Gorin dated 

March 28, 2016 
2. Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report dated January 13, 2016, without attachments 
3. Planning Commission Staff Report dated March 10, 2016, without attachments 
4. Public Comment to Planning Commission March 17, 2016 
5. Planning Commission Resolution No. 010-16 
6. Planning Commission Minutes of March 17, 2016 
7. Applicant’s Executive Summary and Operating Plan 
8. Reduced copies of floor and security plans 
9. SBMC Sections 28.80.050 and 28.80.070 (Locational Limitations and Criteria for 

Issuance) 
 
NOTE:  The approved plans been placed in the Mayor and Council’s Office and are 
available for public review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
PREPARED BY: Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1

































































































STAFF HEARING OFFICER 
STAFF REPORT 

REPORT DATE: January 13, 2016 

AGENDA DATE: January 20, 2016 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
“The Canopy” 

TO: Susan Reardon, Senior Planner, Staff Hearing Officer 

FROM: Planning Division, (805) 564-5470 
Beatriz Gularte, Senior Planner 
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The project consists of a proposal for a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary
Permit.  The dispensary would be located in an existing 2,264 square foot commercial
building.  Interior and exterior improvements are proposed.

II. REQUIRED APPLICATIONS
The discretionary application required for this project is a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit (SBMC §28.80.030).

III. RECOMMENDATION
If approved as proposed, the project would conform to the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  Therefore,
staff recommends that the Staff Hearing Officer approve the project, making the findings outlined
in Section VII of this report, and subject to the conditions of approval in Exhibit A.

ATTACHMENT 2



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
Vicinity Map - 118 North Milpas Street 

 
 
IV. SITE INFORMATION

Applicant:  Ryan Howe 
Property Owner: Merry Milpas LLC 
Site Information 
Parcel Number: 017-091-016 Lot Area: 4,449 sq. ft. 
General Plan: Commercial/High Density 
Residential Zoning: C-2, Commercial 

Existing Use: Vacant commercial building Topography: Flat 
Adjacent Land Uses 

North – Residential                                           East – Residential 
South – Residential                                           West – Residential and Commercial 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 3 
 
V. ZONING ORDINANCE CONSISTENCY 

Medical Cannabis Dispensaries are governed by Chapter 28.80 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code (SBMC).  The following discussion provides an analysis of the proposed 
project’s consistency with that Chapter. 

A. STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY LIMITATIONS  

The proposed dispensary complies with the location limitations in SBMC §28.80.050.  The parcel 
is commercially zoned and located in the allowed 00 to 400 blocks of North Milpas Street.  The 
one-story commercial building is set back approximately five feet behind the sidewalk and 
provides good visibility of the entrance, and visibility into and out of the dispensary through the 
large front windows.  A separate accessible entrance on the south side of the building is set back 
approximately 22 feet and also has good visibility.  The location is not within 1,000 feet of 
another dispensary, it would be the only dispensary in the Milpas Street area, and it would not 
result in more than three permitted dispensaries in the City.   

B. ISSUANCE CRITERIA  

The Zoning Ordinance requires that the Staff Hearing Officer consider the following issuance 
criteria in determining whether to grant or deny a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit 
(SBMC §28.80.070.B): 
 
1. That the Collective Dispensary permit and the operation of the proposed Dispensary will be 
consistent with the intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 Statutes for 
providing medical marijuana to qualified patients and primary caregivers, and with the 
provisions of this Chapter and the Municipal Code, including the application submittal and 
operating requirements herein. 
 
The applicant states in his introduction letter that the proposed Storefront Collective Dispensary, 
“The Canopy”, will operate under the laws of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 (Proposition 
215) and Senate Bill 420 (Exhibit B, page 5).  The operations plan, security plans, and signed 
affidavits indicate compliance with the dispensary ordinance and Municipal Code. 
 
2. That the proposed location of the Storefront Collective Dispensary is not identified by the City 
Chief of Police as an area of increased or high crime activity. 
 
The location is not identified by the City Police Department as an area of increased or high crime 
activity. 
 
3. For those applicants who have operated other Storefront Collective Dispensaries within the 
City, that there have not been significant numbers of calls for police service, crimes or arrests in 
the area of the applicant’s former location. 
 
The applicant has not operated any other Storefront Collective Dispensaries in the City. 
 
4. That issuance of a Collective Dispensary permit for the Collective Dispensary size requested 
is appropriate to meet needs of the community for access to medical marijuana. 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 
The proposed interior tenant improvements in the existing 2,264 square foot one-story 
commercial building will create separate areas for waiting, dispensing, office, and secured 
storage (Exhibit B pages 8 & 29).  The proposed size is appropriate to safely and efficiently 
operate a dispensary to meet the needs of the community. 
 
5. That issuance of the Collective Dispensary permit would serve needs of City residents within 
a proximity to this location. 
 
The dispensary would be located in the Milpas neighborhood and would be centrally located 
among the neighborhoods on the east side of the City.  Of the five allowed dispensary location 
areas within the City, the Milpas Street area is the only one located on the east side of the City.  
The location on the Milpas Street thoroughfare would provide easy access, and is reasonably 
close to Metropolitan Transit District (MTD) bus stops. 
 
6. That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter or any local or state law, 
statute, rule, or regulation, and no significant nuisance issues or problems are likely or 
anticipated, and that compliance with other applicable requirements of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance will be accomplished. 
 
The proposed location is not prohibited, and it complies with the location limitations in SBMC 
§28.80.050.  The parcel is commercially zoned and located in the area of Milpas Street where 
dispensaries are allowed.  The commercial building has good public visibility and no significant 
nuisance issues or problems are likely or anticipated with regard to this location. 
 
7. That the Dispensary’s Operations Plan, its site plan, its floor plan, the proposed hours of 
operation, and a security plan have incorporated features necessary to assist in reducing 
potential crime-related problems and as specified in the operating requirements section. These 
features may include, but are not limited to, security on-site; procedure for allowing entry; 
openness to surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, and surrounding properties; 
reduction of opportunities for congregating and obstructing public ways and neighboring 
property; illumination of exterior areas; and limiting furnishings and features that encourage 
loitering and nuisance behavior. 
 
The application proposes physical improvements shown on the site plan consisting of security 
cameras, and a see-through fence to control the exterior of the property.  The floor plan is 
configured to provide a large waiting area to reduce the chance of loitering outside, high quality 
doors and locks, a secure wall and controlled access between the waiting and dispensing areas, 
and provides a built-in vault for secure storage.  The operations plan gives detailed descriptions 
of the means by which the proposed operation will comply with requirements (Exhibit B, pages 
9 & 19).  Members are informed, and must sign a membership agreement which lists 
requirements and prohibitions (Exhibit B, page 47).  The security plan proposes two security 
guards on site during business hours, a registered alarm system (required by ordinance), and 
interior and exterior security cameras with recordings secured in the vault (Exhibit B, page 31). 
 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 5 
 

8. That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into the Dispensary security plan or 
consistently taken to successfully control the establishment’s patrons’ conduct resulting in 
disturbances, vandalism, crowd control inside or outside the premises, traffic control problems, 
marijuana use in public, or creation of a public or private nuisance, or interference of the 
operation of another business. 
 
Two security guards are proposed to be on site during business hours.  Security guards’ 
responsibilities will include screening new and prospective members, monitoring and controlling 
the conduct of members and removal of graffiti.  The application proposes a “zero tolerance” 
clause in the membership agreement regarding members and employees loitering and/or using 
cannabis within 200 feet of the dispensary.  This form includes items regarding courteous 
behavior, being respectful to neighboring businesses and residences, not littering or loitering, and 
not medicating in or around the premises.  Staff expects to review an updated membership 
agreement form including the zero tolerance clause, and the proposed onsite signage addressing 
member behavior (Exhibit B, pages 10, 31 & 47).    
 
9. That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse effect on the 
health, peace, or safety of persons living or working in the surrounding area, overly burden a 
specific neighborhood, or contribute to a public nuisance, and that the Dispensary will generally 
not result in repeated nuisance activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug 
activity, marijuana use in public, harassment of passerby, excessive littering, excessive loitering, 
illegal parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night or early in the morning hours, lewd 
conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 
 
The proposed security plan and operations plan should avoid nuisance behavior and adverse 
effects on health, peace, and safety of persons in the surrounding area.  Adequate lighting exists, 
and security cameras would be inside and outside the building.  One of the two security guards 
would patrol the exterior of the premises at least once per hour, and ensure the street and sidewalk 
are free of loitering, and that other businesses are not negatively affected.  The patrolling guard 
would watch for alcohol or cannabis use, address nuisance issues, pick up litter, and report 
graffiti.  Hours of operation are limited to 8 AM to 6 PM, Monday through Saturday.  Therefore, 
the dispensary operation is not likely to have adverse effects on the health, peace, or safety of 
persons living or working in the surrounding area; overly burden a specific neighborhood; or 
contribute to a public nuisance (Exhibit B, pages 11 & 31).  
 
10. That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition imposed by a City-issued permit, or 
any provision of any other local or state law, regulation, or order, or any condition imposed by 
permits issued in compliance with those laws, will not be violated. 
 
No violations of municipal code provisions, conditions of any City-issued permits, or any other 
local or state law, regulation or order, or any condition imposed by permits issued in compliance 
with any local or state law have been identified.  The Staff Hearing Officer has the authority to 
suspend or revoke the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit pursuant to SBMC Section 
28.80.120 if it appears to that Officer that the Dispensary permittee has violated any of the 
requirements of Chapter 28.80, or the dispensary is being operated in a manner which violates 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 6 
 

the operational requirements or operational plan required by the Dispensary Ordinance, or it is 
operated in a manner which conflicts with state law. 
 
11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of material fact or has omitted to state a 
material fact in the application for a permit. 
 
The applicant, Ryan Howe, signed a statement that all information in the application is true.  Staff 
has not discovered any false statements or omissions of material facts in the application materials. 
 
12. That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business 
acts or practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. 
 
The applicant passed the required background check.  The applicant included a signed statement 
in his application that he has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business 
acts or practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. 

PARKING  

The dispensary ordinance specifies that a dispensary shall be considered a commercial use 
relative to the parking requirement (SBMC §28.80.080.D.6).  This location has never had any 
onsite parking, and is therefore legal, non-conforming to the commercial parking requirement to 
provide one space per 250 square feet of floor area (SBMC §28.90.100.I).  The application 
proposes four bicycle parking spaces on site.  The conforming parking requirement would be 
nine onsite vehicle spaces and one bicycle space.  The configuration of the site makes onsite 
parking infeasible, as commercial parking is not allowed to back out onto Milpas Street and there 
is not enough space to turn a vehicle around on the site.  The applicant anticipates using on street 
parking for employees and members.  Because additional parking is not a zoning requirement, 
nor is it a criterion for the issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit, staff does not 
consider parking to be a significant issue.  Once the dispensary is open and operating, the 
applicant may request that Transportation Engineering staff conduct an on-street parking 
occupancy study to determine if a 15 minute green curb zone in front of the building would be 
beneficial for the project.  Many of the dispensary members are anticipated to be disabled; 
however, the City is moving away from adding on-street blue zones for the disabled for private 
residences or businesses.   
 

VI. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Staff has determined that the project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from further 
environmental review under Section 15301(a) (Existing Facilities) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  The project involves interior and exterior tenant 
improvements in an existing commercial building, and landscaping improvements.   

 

 

 

 



Staff Hearing Officer Staff Report 
118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
January 13, 2016 
Page 7 
 
VII. FINDINGS 

The Staff Hearing Officer finds the following:  
STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY PERMIT (SBMC §28.80.070)  

The application complies with the location criteria of SBMC §28.80.050, as outlined in Section 
V.A of the staff report, and with the criteria for issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
permit set forth in SBMC §28.80.070.B, as explained in Section V.B of the Staff Report and the 
applicant’s submittal. 

Exhibits: 

A. Conditions of Approval 
B. Application, Executive Summary, and Operating Plan  
C. Project Plans – distributed separately 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

REPORT DATE: March 10, 2016 

AGENDA DATE: March 17, 2016 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 118 North Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
“The Canopy” 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning Division, (805) 564-5470, extension 4539 
Beatriz Gularte, Senior Planner 
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 

I. PURPOSE OF HEARING
The purpose of this hearing is for the Planning Commission to consider the appeal of the Staff
Hearing Officer (SHO) approval on January 20, 2016 of a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit at 118 North Milpas Street.

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The project approved by the SHO consists of a proposal for a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit.  The dispensary would be located in an existing 2,264 square foot
commercial building.  Interior and exterior improvements are proposed.

The discretionary application required for this project is a Medical Marijuana Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit (SBMC §28.80.030).

The appellant, Pete Dal Bello, requests that the Planning Commission deny the project (refer to
Exhibit A, Appellant’s Letter).

III. RECOMMENDATION
That the Planning Commission consider whether the application meets the twelve criteria for
issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit in SBMC §28.80.070.B in determining
whether to affirm, reverse, or modify the decision of the SHO.  Please refer to the SHO staff
report (Exhibit B) for staff’s analysis of the application and the complete list of criteria for
issuance which the Planning Commission must consider in deciding on the appeal.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission denies the appeal and approves the Storefront
Collective Dispensary Permit, including the Conditions of Approval as shown in SHO Resolution
006-16 (Exhibit C).

ATTACHMENT 3



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
Vicinity Map - 118 North Milpas Street 

 
IV.  SITE INFORMATION 

Applicant:  Ryan Howe 
Property Owner: Merry Milpas LLC 
Site Information 
Parcel Number: 017-091-016 Lot Area: 4,449 sq. ft. 
General Plan: Commercial/High Density 
Residential Zoning: C-2, Commercial 

Existing Use: Vacant commercial building Topography: Flat 
Adjacent Land Uses 

North – Residential                                           East – Residential 
South – Residential                                           West – Residential and Commercial 

V. STAFF HEARING OFFICER DECISION 
On January 20, 2016, the SHO approved the request for a Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit.  The application was found to meet the location criteria, and the 
criteria for issuance of a permit (Exhibit D).  The SHO imposed additional conditions of approval 
on the project at the hearing.   

 The following is a summary of SHO Conditions of Approval that were added at the hearing: 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 3 
 

A. Elimination of Curb Cut to provide additional on-street parking   
B. Operating Plan shall be amended as follows: 

1. A minimum of two security guards on duty during operating hours 

2. Security camera monitoring shall have 24 hour remote live feed offsite 

3. Explain that a member may obtain medical marijuana only after an initial waiting 
period 

4. A complete list of available products, merchandise, and services to City staff  

5. Marketing concepts will be conducted at offsite locations 

6. Clarify what rules of conduct will be displayed in the waiting room 

7. Post inside the dispensary a State Law Compliance Warning 

8. All patients and caregivers enter through the front doors outside of the fenced area 

9. Dispensary Management shall place trash outside of the fenced area on pickup 
day 

C. Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as follows: 

1. Add zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using cannabis or alcohol on 
the property.  In the event of infraction, membership shall be terminated 

2. Add that membership is limited to only one collective within the City 

D. Interior Signage with rules, state law, minors, and hours shall be approved by City staff 

The full text of the conditions of approval in SHO Resolution 006-16 is shown in Exhibit C. 

VI. APPEAL ISSUES 
Mr. Dal Bello’s appeal letter provides a narrative of neighborhood history, relates events that 
occurred during the application process, and expresses concerns about:  

• Allowing a medical marijuana dispensary in this neighborhood;  

• Crime and safety in the area;  

• Impacts to on-street parking; and 

• Notification of the SHO hearing.   
Below is staff’s discussion of the appellant’s concerns and how those concerns relate to criteria 
to be considered in issuing a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit.   

A. Dispensary in Milpas Area 
The appellant spoke in opposition to having a dispensary at this location.  Concerns were 
expressed by 21 of the 23 members of the public who spoke and/or submitted written comments 
that a dispensary should not be allowed in the Milpas area (Exhibit E).  As described in the SHO 
staff report and SHO hearing, the application complies with the “Limitations on the Permitted 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 4 
 

Location of a Storefront Collective Dispensary” in SBMC §28.80.050.  In brief, these limitations 
are:  

• Parcel is zoned for commercial use and located on the 00 to 400 blocks of North 
Milpas Street;  

• Visible, ground floor storefront location with good public views of the entrance and 
windows;  

• Not within 1000 feet of another dispensary;  
• No other Storefront Collective Dispensaries in the Milpas area; and  
• No more than three Collective Dispensary permits in the City. 

The ordinance, SBMC Chapter 28.80, which allows this use at this location was adopted by the 
City Council on March 25, 2008 and a revised ordinance was adopted by the City Council on 
June 29, 2010.  The revised ordinance specifies the five areas of the City where a dispensary 
could be allowed.  How were the 00 to 400 blocks of N. Milpas selected as an allowed area for a 
dispensary?  The history of the ordinance shows that locational limitations for dispensaries had 
much review during the drafting process, and throughout reviews at public hearings by the 
Planning Commission, Ordinance Committee, and adoption by the City Council.  Appropriate 
zoning was determined to be the commercial zones, particularly the General Commercial (C-2) 
zone.  Within the City’s commercial zones, the downtown area, as well as areas in close 
proximity to parks and schools were excluded, and five areas of allowed locations were specified 
in the ordinance:  Outer State Street, Upper De La Vina, Mission Street, West Pueblo Medical 
Facility, and Milpas Street.  The portion of North Milpas Street in proximity to Santa Barbara 
Junior High School was excluded.  The considerations about locational limitations included 
discussion about locating dispensaries in proximity to residential areas.  A limitation to stay some 
distance away from residential zones was rejected, in part to allow dispensaries on the narrow 
commercially zoned North Milpas Street corridor.  A buffer prohibiting dispensaries any 
significant distance from the adjoining residential zones would have deleted much of the Milpas 
area.  At this time, excluding the Milpas area from the ordinance would require an ordinance 
amendment to SBMC Chapter 28.80 approved by the City Council. 

B. Neighborhood Safety 
The appellant provided a report listing police calls for service at the vicinity of the subject 
property to demonstrate that this location has crime issues even without an operating dispensary.  
Attached to his appeal letter is a report of 911 calls dated January 25, 2008 to January 21, 2015.  
None of these calls were related to the current dispensary applicant or new property owner (since 
May 28, 2015). 

In deciding on issuance of a dispensary permit, consideration must be given to Criterion 2, that 
the proposed location is not identified by the City Chief of Police as an area of increased or high 
crime activity.  The City Police Department did confirm that 118 North Milpas Street is not an 
area of increased or high crime activity.  Staff considers the proposed operations and security 
plans to be responsive to safety concerns, and consistent with Criteria 7, 8, and 9 as described in 
the SHO staff report (Exhibit B), and the SHO approved the application. 

 

 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 5 
 

C. Parking 
The appellant is concerned that, by not providing any on-site parking, this operation will have 
negative impacts to the availability of surrounding on-street parking for businesses and residents.  
Similar concerns were expressed by 12 of the 23 public commenters.  The parking requirement 
for a dispensary is stated in the dispensary ordinance to be the “commercial” parking requirement 
(SBMC §28.80.080.D.6).  The commercial parking requirement does not consider the popularity 
of a particular tenant or operation, it is determined by the square footage of the building, and the 
commercial use category in the City’s Parking Ordinance, SBMC §28.90.100.I.   

The requirement for commercial use is one parking space per 250 square feet of net floor area of 
the building.  Both the previous retail use, and the proposed dispensary use in this building fall 
under the commercial parking requirement, and both are conforming commercial uses in the C-
2 Commercial zone.  Since both are commercial uses, provision SBMC §28.90.001.N in the 
parking ordinance regarding change of use does not apply.  For this building, the conforming 
parking requirement would be nine spaces, however this property is legal, nonconforming with 
no onsite parking.  For properties which are nonconforming to the required parking, the parking 
ordinance provides that the nonconforming situation may continue, except that additional parking 
must be provided if the building square footage is increased, or the use of the building is changed 
to a use that requires more parking (SBMC §28.90.001.B).  Because the application does not 
involve new square footage or a change in use that requires more parking, no new parking is 
required.  The conforming parking requirement for bicycles would be one space, and the site plan 
includes bicycle racks for four bicycles. 

Parking is a zoning requirement; it is not a criterion for consideration in the issuance of a 
dispensary permit.  However, as a practical matter, staff requested that the applicant be able to 
explain how he envisions parking to work for his proposed operation.  The applicant provided a 
“parking plan” to staff to show how he will advise employee members and patient members of 
the availability of surrounding on-street parking, and of alternatives such as buses and bicycling. 
Because parking is not a criterion for issuance, this parking plan was not included in the proposed 
application.  The parking plan was discussed at the SHO hearing but was not made a part of the 
approved application. 

During the application review process, the applicant consulted with staff about closing the 
existing driveway in front of his property in order to provide more on-street parking.  Because of 
the expense, he did not include this work in his proposal but said he would consider doing it once 
the dispensary was operating.  The elimination of the curb cut and installation of new curb would 
result in the addition of one or two on-street public parking spaces, depending upon vehicle size 
and driver behavior.  The SHO made completion of this work with a Public Works permit a 
condition of approval.   

Criterion 8 refers to controlling patrons’ conduct with regard to traffic control problems, or 
interference of the operation of another business.  Criterion 9 refers to no adverse effect, not 
overly burdening a specific neighborhood, and not resulting in nuisance activities including 
illegal parking.  Staff does not consider these criteria applicable to this property’s nonconforming 
parking situation. 

D. Public Notification 



Planning Commission Staff Report 
118 N. Milpas Street (MST2015-00319) 
March 10, 2016 
Page 6 
 

Proper notification was done in accordance with the Brown Act, and with City requirements in 
SBMC 28.87.380 (Notice of Hearing), and consistent with Government Code Sections 65090 
and 65091.  The application had public hearings at the Architectural Board of Review Consent 
Agenda (ABR), and the SHO.  Ten days prior to both hearings, notices were mailed to owners of 
property within 300 feet, and a sign was posted at the site.  Five to six days prior to the ABR and 
SHO hearings, meeting agendas were posted at 630 Garden Street and on the City website.  
Twelve days prior to the SHO hearing, a legal ad appeared in the Santa Barbara News Press.   

Two notices were sent to Dal Bello properties prior to the ABR and SHO hearings.  Mr. Dal 
Bello was added to the mailing list as an interested party for the SHO hearing as a result of 
making public comment at the ABR hearing.  Mailed notification to neighboring tenants is not 
required or City policy, however, the standard large yellow Notice of Development sign was 
posted at the front of the site at least 10 days prior to ABR and SHO hearings.  Prior to the SHO 
hearing, the Staff Hearing Officer and planning staff read all written public comments received.  

VII. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Staff has determined that the project qualifies for a categorical exemption from further 
environmental review under Section 15301(a) (Existing Facilities) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines.  The project involves a tenant improvement in 
an existing commercial building. 

VIII. FINDINGS 
The Planning Commission finds the following:  

The application complies with the location criteria of SBMC §28.80.050, as outlined in Section 
V.A of the SHO staff report, and with the criteria for issuance of a Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit set forth in SBMC §28.80.070.B, as explained in Section V.B of the SHO staff 
report and the applicant’s submittal. 

Exhibits: 

A. Appellant’s Letter, dated January 26, 2016  
B. SHO Staff Report, January 20, 2016 
C. SHO Resolution 006-16 
D. SHO Minutes, January 20, 2016, and Written Public Comment 
E. Application, Executive Summary, and Operating Plan 
F. Medical Cannabis Dispensaries Ordinance (SBMC Chapter 28.80) 



ATTACHMENT 4





































































































CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PLANNING COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO. 010-16 

118 N. MILPAS STREET 
STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY PERMIT 

MARCH 17, 2016 

APPLICATION OF RYAN HOWE, 118 NORTH MILPAS STREET, 017-091-016, C-2 COMMERCIAL 
ZONE, GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION:  COMMERCIAL/MED HIGH RESIDENTIAL   (MST2015-
00319) 
On January 20, 2016, the Staff Hearing Officer approved an application for a Medical Marijuana Storefront 
Collective Dispensary at 118 North Milpas Street.  On January 28, 2016, Mr. Peter Dal Bello filed an appeal of 
the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval. A public hearing will be held for the Planning Commission to hear the 
appeal of the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval of the proposed Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary.  The project includes operations and security plans, interior floor plan improvements, and minor 
exterior alterations and landscaping for the existing commercial building. 

The discretionary application required for this project is a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit 
(SBMC §28.80.030).  

The Environmental Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further environmental review pursuant 
to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15301(a), Existing Facilities.   

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held the required public hearing on the above appeal, and the 
Appellant was present. 

WHEREAS, 12 people appeared to speak in favor of the appeal, and no one appeared to speak in 
opposition thereto, and the following exhibits were presented for the record: 

1. Staff Report with Attachments, March 10, 2016

2. Site Plans

3. Correspondence received in support of the appeal:

a. Richard Garrett, via email

b. Anonymous, hand-delivered

c. Petition with 44 signatures, hand-delivered

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Planning Commission: 

I. Denied the appeal and upheld the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision of approval of the Dispensary making
the following findings and determinations:

The application complies with the location criteria of SBMC §28.80.050, as outlined in Section V.A of
the SHO staff report, and with the criteria for issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit set
forth in SBMC §28.80.070.B, as explained in Section V.B of the SHO staff report and the applicant’s
submittal.  The approval includes compliance with the Staff Hearing Officer’s conditions of approval as
listed below.

ATTACHMENT 5



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 
II. Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 

A. Approved Dispensary.  The applicant shall operate the dispensary in accordance with Chapter 
28.80 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, and in accordance with the application information 
and plans approved by the Staff Hearing Officer on January 20, 2016.   

B. Order of Development.  In order to accomplish the proposed development, the following steps 
shall occur in the order identified:  

1. Permits. 

a. Submit an application for and obtain a Building Permit (BLD) for construction of 
approved development and complete said development.   

b. Submit an application for and obtain an alarm system permit.  Said alarm system 
shall be installed and registered per Municipal Code Chapter 9.100 and shall 
meet the requirements of the Santa Barbara Police Department. 

c. Submit an application for and obtain a Public Works Permit (PBW) for the 
construction Work and Temporary Traffic Control in the Public Right-of-Way. 

Details on implementation of these steps are provided throughout the conditions of approval. 

C. Requirements Prior to Permit Issuance.  The Owner shall submit the following, or evidence of 
completion of the following, for review and approval by the Department listed below prior to the 
issuance of any permit for the project.  Some of these conditions may be waived for demolition or 
rough grading permits, at the discretion of the department listed.  Please note that these conditions 
are in addition to the standard submittal requirements for each department. 

1. Community Development Department.   
a. Elimination of Curb Cut.  The existing curb cut and driveway apron shall be 

removed and replaced with curb, parkway, and sidewalk constructed to City 
Standards. 

b. Trash Enclosure and Trash Handling.  A trash enclosure with adequate area for 
recycling containers (an area that allows for a minimum of 50 percent of the total 
capacity for recycling containers) shall be provided on the Real Property and locked 
and screened from view from surrounding properties and the street. 

c. Operating Plan.  The Operating Plan shall be amended as follows: 

(1) A minimum of two (2) security guards shall be on duty during operating 
hours.  In the event of guards taking breaks or escorting staff off the 
premises, backup guard(s) shall be provided to maintain the two-guard 
minimum during operating hours.  

(2) After hours security camera monitoring shall have a 24 hour remote live 
feed to the offsite security monitoring firm. 

(3) Explain that upon joining the Collective, a registered member may obtain 
medical marijuana as a qualified patient or primary caregiver only after an 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 3 
 

initial waiting period of 24 hours after their initial in-person visit to the 
Dispensary for the purposes of joining the Collective 

(4) A complete list of available products (including edibles), merchandise, and 
services to be sold, offered, or provided at the Dispensary shall be provided 
to Community Development Department staff.   

(5) Clarify that marketing concepts such as concerts, “street walk”, and lectures 
will be conducted at offsite locations, not at the dispensary premises. 

(6) Clarify what rules of conduct “specifically including the points on the 
attachments” (page 21 of the Operation Plan) will be specified on a large 
sign displayed in the waiting room 

(7) Note that Canopy will post in a conspicuous location inside the dispensary 
a State Law Compliance Warning. 

(8) All qualified patients and primary caregivers shall enter the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary through the front doors outside of the secured fenced 
garden/wellness area.  The secured outside gate to this area shall be used for 
exit only. 

(9) On trash collection days, the Storefront Collective Dispensary Management 
shall remove the trash and recycling containers from the secured fenced area 
and place them in an area outside of the secured fenced area for servicing 
by the waste hauler.  The trash and recycling containers shall be returned to 
the trash/recycling enclosure within the secured fenced area by the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary Management prior to the close of the 
Dispensary that same day.  Waste hauler personnel shall not enter the 
controlled premises of the dispensary. 

(10) The Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as follows:  
i) Add acknowledgement by the patient or primary caregiver of the 

Canopy’s zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using 
cannabis products or alcohol on or within 200 feet of the property 
including zero tolerance of use during any onsite class/lecture 
(educational, yoga, meditation, etc).  In the event of loitering or a 
cannabis use infraction, membership in this Collective shall be 
terminated. 

ii) Add acknowledgement and agreement by the patient or primary 
caregiver that they understand that they are limited to membership 
to only one collective within the City of Santa Barbara per 
28.80.080.G.5. 

d. Patient Agreement Form.  The Patient Agreement Form shall be amended as 
follows: 

(1) Add acknowledgement by the patient or primary caregiver of the Canopy’s 
zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using cannabis products or 
alcohol on or within 200 feet of the property including zero tolerance of use 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 4 
 

during any onsite class/lecture (educational, yoga, meditation, etc).  In the 
event of loitering or a cannabis use infraction, membership in this Collective 
shall be terminated. 

(2) Add acknowledgement and agreement by the patient or primary caregiver 
that they understand that they are limited to membership to only one 
collective within the City of Santa Barbara per 28.80.080.G.5. 

e. Interior Signage.  The interior signage related to the rules of conduct, state law 
warning, prohibition of minors without parent/guardian, and hours of operation 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development Department. 

f. Conditions on Plans/Signatures.  The final Resolution shall be provided on a full 
size drawing sheet as part of the drawing sets. A statement shall also be placed on 
the sheet as follows:  The undersigned have read and understand the required 
conditions, and agree to abide by any and all conditions which are their usual and 
customary responsibility to perform, and which are within their authority to 
perform. 

 Signed: 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Property Owner       Date 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Contractor    Date   License No. 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Architect    Date   License No. 

 __________________________________________________________ 
 Engineer     Date   License No. 

D. Construction Implementation Requirements.  All of these construction requirements shall be 
carried out in the field by the Owner and/or Contractor for the duration of the project construction, 
including demolition and grading.  

1. Construction Contact Sign.  Immediately after Building permit issuance, signage shall be 
posted at the points of entry to the site that list the contractor(s) name, contractor(s) 
telephone number(s), and construction-related conditions, to assist Building Inspectors and 
Police Officers in the enforcement of the conditions of approval.  The font size shall be a 
minimum of 0.5 inches in height.  Said sign shall not exceed six feet in height from the 
ground if it is free-standing or placed on a fence.  It shall not exceed 24 square feet if in a 
multi-family or commercial zone or six square feet if in a single family zone. 

2. Construction Storage/Staging.  Construction vehicle/ equipment/ materials storage and 
staging shall be done on-site.  No parking or storage shall be permitted within the public 
right-of-way, unless specifically permitted by the Public Works Director with a Public 
Works permit.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 5 
 

E. Prior to Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, the Owner 
of the Real Property shall complete the following: 

1. Alarm System.  Register and install an alarm system per the requirements in SBMC 
Chapter 9.100.  

2. North Milpas Street Public Improvements.  The Owner shall submit an application and 
Public Works plans for construction of improvements along the property frontage on North 
Milpas Street.  Plans shall be submitted separately from plans submitted for a Building 
Permit and shall be prepared by a licensed civil engineer registered in the State of 
California.  As determined by the Public Works Department, the improvements shall 
include the elimination of the existing 10-ft driveway apron with the replacement of a new 
6-ft sidewalk, parkway and new curb and gutter per City standards. Tim Downey, Urban 
Forest Superintendent, Tel. (805) 564-5592, needs to be contacted in regards to the tree 
right next to the existing driveway apron in the Public Right-of-Way. 

3. Repair Damaged Public Improvements.  Repair any public improvements (curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, roadways, etc.) or property damaged by construction subject to the 
review and approval of the Public Works Department per SBMC §22.60.   

F. General Conditions. 
1. Compliance with Requirements.  All requirements of the city of Santa Barbara and any 

other applicable requirements of any law or agency of the State and/or any government 
entity or District shall be met.  This includes, but is not limited to, the Endangered Species 
Act of 1973 [ESA] and any amendments thereto (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.), the 1979 Air 
Quality Attainment Plan, and the California Code of Regulations. 

2. Approval Limitations.   
a. The conditions of this approval supersede all conflicting notations, specifications, 

dimensions, and the like which may be shown on submitted plans. 

b. All buildings, parking areas and other features shall be located substantially as 
shown on the plans approved by the Staff Hearing Officer. 

c. Any deviations from the project description, approved plans or conditions must be 
reviewed and approved by the City, in accordance with the Planning Commission 
Guidelines.  Deviations may require changes to the permit and/or further 
environmental review.  Deviations without the above-described approval will 
constitute a violation of permit approval.   

G. Litigation Indemnification Agreement.  In the event the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval of the 
permit is appealed to the City Council, Applicant/Owner hereby agrees to defend the City, its 
officers, employees, agents, consultants and independent contractors (“City’s Agents”) from any 
third party legal challenge to the City Council’s denial of the appeal and approval of the Project, 
including, but not limited to, challenges filed pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (collectively “Claims”).  Applicant/Owner further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
City and the City’s Agents from any award of attorney fees or court costs made in connection with 
any Claim. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 6 
 

Applicant/Owner shall execute a written agreement, in a form approved by the City Attorney, 
evidencing the foregoing commitments of defense and indemnification within thirty (30) days of 
the City Council denial of the appeal and approval of the Project.  These commitments of defense 
and indemnification are material conditions of the approval of the Project.  If Applicant/Owner 
fails to execute the required defense and indemnification agreement within the time allotted, the 
Project approval shall become null and void absent subsequent acceptance of the agreement by the 
City, which acceptance shall be within the City’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing contained 
in this condition shall prevent the City or the City’s Agents from independently defending any 
Claim.  If the City or the City’s Agents decide to independently defend a Claim, the City and the 
City’s Agents shall bear their own attorney fees, expenses, and costs of that independent defense. 

H. Annual Review of Collective Dispensary Operations.  No later than one year after the issuance 
of the Certificate of Occupancy, or final building inspection signoff, and annually thereafter, the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary Management shall submit to the Community Development 
Department for an annual review of the operation for full compliance with the operational and 
recordkeeping requirements of Chapter 28.80, including but not limited to, compliance with 
Section 28.80.080.H, and verification that all persons employed or volunteering at the Storefront 
Collective Dispensary have not been convicted of or on probation for a crime related to the 
possession, sale, or distribution of controlled substances. A fee in an amount established by 
resolution of the City Council may be required in order to reimburse the City for the time involved 
in the annual review process. The staff may initiate a permit suspension or revocation process for 
any Storefront Collective Dispensary which, upon completion of an annual review, is found not to 
be in compliance with the requirements of this Chapter or which is operating in a manner which 
constitutes a public nuisance. 
 

I. Maintenance of Cultivation Records. The Storefront Collective Dispensary Management shall 
maintain on-site (i.e., at the Property designated for the operation of the Storefront Collective 
Dispensary) the medical marijuana cultivation records of the Collective. These records shall be 
signed under penalty of perjury by each Management Member responsible for the cultivation and 
shall identify the location or locations within the counties of Santa Barbara, Ventura, or San Luis 
Obispo at which the Collective’s medical marijuana is being cultivated. Such records shall also 
record the total number of marijuana plants cultivated or stored at each cultivation location. The 
Storefront Collective Dispensary shall also maintain an inventory record documenting the dates 
and amounts of medical marijuana cultivated or stored at the Dispensary Property, if any, as well 
as the daily amounts of Medical Marijuana distributed from the permitted Dispensary. 
 

II. NOTICE OF STOREFRONT COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY PERMIT APPROVAL TIME 
LIMITS: 
The Staff Hearing Officer action approving the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit shall terminate 
two (2) years from the date of the approval, per Santa Barbara Municipal Code §28.87.360, unless: 

1. An extension is granted by the Community Development Director prior to the expiration of the 
approval; or 

2. A Building permit for the use authorized by the approval is issued and the construction authorized 
by the permit is being diligently pursued to completion and issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.010 –16  
118 N. MILPAS STREET 
MARCH 17, 2016 
PAGE 7 
 
 
 

This motion was passed and adopted on the 17th day of March, 2016 by the Planning Commission of the 
City of Santa Barbara, by the following vote: 

  AYES: 7    NOES: 0    ABSTAIN: 0    ABSENT: 0 

 

I hereby certify that this Resolution correctly reflects the action taken by the city of Santa Barbara Planning 
Commission at its meeting of the above date. 

 
 
 
_______________________________________________  ____________________________ 
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary   Date 
 
PLEASE BE ADVISED: 
 
THIS ACTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION CAN BE APPEALED TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
WITHIN TEN (10) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE DATE THE ACTION WAS TAKEN BY THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

March 17, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Chair Campanella called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. 

I. ROLL CALL
Chair John P. Campanella, Vice-Chair June Pujo, Commissioners Jay D. Higgins, Mike
Jordan, Sheila Lodge, Deborah L. Schwartz, and Addison Thompson.

STAFF PRESENT:
Beatriz Gularte, Senior Planner
Susan Reardon, Staff Hearing Officer
N. Scott Vincent, Assistant City Attorney
Daniel Gullett, Supervising Transportation Planner
Andrew Bermond, Project Planner
Barbara Shelton, Project Planner
Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary

II. PRELIMINARY MATTERS:

A. Requests for continuances, withdrawals, postponements, or addition of ex-agenda
items.

None.

B. Announcements and appeals.

Ms. Gularte announced that Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary was
recognized for ten years of service to the City.  The Commission expressed
appreciation with a standing ovation.

C. Comments from members of the public pertaining to items not on this agenda.

Chair Campanella opened the public hearing at 1:02 P.M. and, with no one wishing
to speak, closed the hearing.

ATTACHMENT 6



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 2 
 
III. STAFF HEARING OFFICER APPEALS: 

ACTUAL TIME: 1:03 P.M. 
 
APPLICATION OF RYAN HOWE, 118 NORTH MILPAS STREET, 017-091-016,  
C-2 COMMERCIAL ZONE, GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: 
COMMERCIAL/MED HIGH RESIDENTIAL   (MST2015-00319) 
On January 20, 2016, the Staff Hearing Officer approved an application for a Medical 
Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary at 118 North Milpas Street.  On January 28, 2016, 
Mr. Peter Dal Bello filed an appeal of the Staff Hearing Officer’s approval. A public hearing 
will be held for the Planning Commission to hear the appeal of the Staff Hearing Officer’s 
approval of the proposed Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary.  The project 
includes operations and security plans, interior floor plan improvements, and minor exterior 
alterations and landscaping for the existing commercial building. 

The discretionary application required for this project is a Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Permit (SBMC §28.80.030).  

The Environmental Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further 
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 
Section 15301(a), Existing Facilities.   

Contact: Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner 
Email: TBoughman@SantaBarbaraCA.gov Phone: (805) 564-5470, extension 4539 

 
Tony Boughman, Assistant Planner, gave the Staff presentation.  Susan Reardon, Staff 
Hearing Officer; and Dan Gullett, Supervising Transportation Planner, were available to 
answer the Commissioners questions. 
 
Pete Dal Bello gave the Appellant presentation.   
 
Ryan Howe, gave the Applicant presentation.  Joseph Allen, Attorney; and Bill Wolfe, 
Architect, were available to answer any of the Commission’s questions. 
 
Chair Campanella opened the public hearing at 1:55 P.M. 
 
The following people spoke in support of the appeal: 

1. Sebastian Aldana, Jr. (submitted petition with 44 signatures in support of the appeal):  
2. Natalia Govoni, Sheer Delights 
3. Joseph Newman 
4. Pamela Newman 
5. Britta Bartels 
6. Natasha Todorovic, Milpas Community Association 
7. Martha Jaimes 
8. Beatriz Molina, Milpas Community Association 
9. Rose Aldana, Milpas Community Association 

mailto:TBoughman@SantaBarbaraCA.gov


Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 3 
 

10. Naomi Greene 
11. Jesus Perez 
12. Stanlee Panelle Cox 

 
With no one else wishing to speak, the public hearing was closed at 2:21 P.M. 
 
MOTION:  Thompson/Lodge Assigned Resolution No.  010-16 
Denied the appeal and upheld the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision of approval of the 
Dispensary with the Staff Hearing Officer’s conditions of approval. 
 
Commissioners Schwartz and Pujo asked the motion makers to consider revisions to the 
conditions of approval included in the motion.  The motion makers declined any revisions and 
kept the motion as made. 
This motion carried by the following roll-call vote:   
 
Ayes:  7    Noes:  0    Abstain:  0    Absent:  0 
 
Chair Campanella announced the ten calendar day appeal period.   
 
Chair Campanella called for a recess at 3:55 P.M. and reconvened the meeting at 4:07 P.M.   

IV. NEW ITEM:   

ACTUAL TIME: 4:07 P.M. 
 
APPLICATION OF SUZANNE ELLEDGE PLANNING AND PERMITTING  
SERVICES, AGENT FOR DIRECT RELIEF, 6100 HOLLISTER AVENUE (6100 
WALLACE BECKNELL ROAD), APN 073-080-065, A-I-1/ SP-6 (AIRPORT 
INDUSTRIAL/ AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL AREA SPECIFIC PLAN) ZONES, 
GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: AIRPORT  (MST2014-00619) 
The project consists of a proposal to construct a new 155,000 square foot (net) facility for 
Direct Relief, a nonprofit organization.  The development includes a new 127,706 square foot 
(net) storage and distribution warehouse with an attached two-story 27,294 square foot (net) 
administrative office building, a secure truck yard loading area, and 162 parking spaces on a 
7.99 acre parcel to be purchased from the City of Santa Barbara Airport.  The existing eight 
buildings totaling 12,937 square feet would be demolished.  A new public road is proposed to 
be constructed immediately south of the project site, which is located in Sub-area 3 of the 
Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan (SP-6).  The current address is 6100 
Hollister Avenue.  The new address would be 6100 Wallace Becknell Road.  

The discretionary applications required for this project are:   

1. A Finding of Consistency with the Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan 
(SP-6);  



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 4 
 

2. Development Plan Approval for the entire project, including an allocation of 118,500 
square feet of nonresidential development from the Community Benefit, Small 
Addition, and Vacant Property Categories (SBMC Chapter 28.85); and 

3. Design Review Approval by the Architectural Board of Review (SBMC§22.68.020). 

An Addendum to the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport Industrial/Commercial 
Specific Plan Final Environmental Impact Report/ Assessment has been prepared for 
the proposed project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 
Section 15164 (Addendum to an EIR).   

Contact: Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner 
Email: KKennedy@SantaBarbaraCA.gov Phone: (805) 564-5470, extension 4560 
 
Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner, gave the Staff presentation.  Andrew Bermond, Airport 
Project Planner; Barbara Shelton, Project Planner/Environmental Analyst; and Dan Gullett, 
Supervising Transportation Planner, were available to answer any of the Commission’s 
questions.   
 
Marti Milan, Principal Civil Engineer, City of Goleta, was also present. 
 
Suzanne Elledge, Suzanne Elledge Planning and Permitting Services, Inc., gave the Applicant 
presentation joined by Mark Linehan, Direct Relief Board Member; Courtney Jane Miller, 
Landscape Architect; Thomas Tighe, Direct Relief Chief Executive Officer; David Stone, 
Archaeologist, Dudek; and Scott Schell, Associated Transportation Engineers.  
 
Chair Campanella opened the public hearing at 4:22 P.M., and with no one wishing to speak 
the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Jordan/Thompson  Assigned Resolution No.  011-16 
Approved the project, making the findings for environmental review, consistency with the 
Santa Barbara Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan (SP-6) and Development Plan as outlined 
in the Staff Report, dated March 10, 2016, subject to the Conditions of Approval in Exhibit A 
of the Staff Report with the following revisions to the Conditions of Approval:  
 
1. Add a new condition that prior to permit issuance the Applicant shall provide funds 

to the City to facilitate the construction of MTD shelters on the westbound and 
eastbound bus stop locations and include an agreeable time period for use of the funds.  

2. Clarify references to C-1 public improvement drawings with a definition in conditions 
of approval. 

 
This motion carried by the following vote:   
 
Ayes:  7    Noes:  0    Abstain:  0    Absent:  0 
 
Chair Campanella announced the ten calendar day appeal period.   

mailto:KKennedy@SantaBarbaraCA.gov


Planning Commission Minutes  
March 17, 2016 
Page 5 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 

ACTUAL TIME: 5:09 P.M. 

A. Committee and Liaison Reports 

1. Staff Hearing Officer Liaison Report 

None was given.  

2. Other Committee and Liaison Reports 
 

a. Commissioner Higgins reported on the Downtown Parking 
Committee meeting held earlier in the morning. 

b. Commissioner Schwartz reported on the Water Commission meeting 
held earlier in the day. 

c. Commissioner Campanella reported on the Architectural Board of 
Review meeting held on March 14, 2016. 

d. Commissioner Campanella reported on the New Zoning Ordinance 
(NZO) Workshop and Special Planning Commission meeting to be 
held on Friday, March 18, 2016. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Campanella adjourned the meeting at 5:14 P.M. 
 

Submitted by, 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary 



EXHIBIT B

ATTACHMENT 7























































































































































ATTACHMENT 8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 8:  The reduced copies of the floor and security plans for 118 N. Milpas 

Street have been distributed separately.    

 

A copy of the plans are available for viewing at the City Clerk’s Office, 735 Anacapa 

Street, Santa Barbara, CA between the hours of 8:30 A.M and  

4:30 P.M.  Monday through Thursday, and every other Friday.  Please check the City 

Calendar at www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov to verify closure dates. 

 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


28.80.050 Limitations on the Permitted Location of a Storefront Collective Dispensary. 

A. Permissible Zoning for Storefront Collective Dispensaries. Storefront Collective Dispensaries may only
be permitted and located on parcels within the City which are zoned for commercial uses and on those street
block faces listed in the exhibit to this Chapter designated as “Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective
Dispensaries – Allowed Locations,” dated as of June 22, 2010.
B. Storefront Locations. Except for those locations shown as allowed within the West Pueblo Medical Area
on the exhibit attached to this Chapter which have been specifically approved by the Staff Hearing Officer as
nonstorefront locations pursuant to this Chapter, a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall only be located in a
visible storefront type ground-floor location which provides good public views of the Dispensary entrance, its
windows, and the entrance to the Storefront Collective Dispensary premises from a public street.
C. Commercial Areas and Zones Where Storefront Collective Dispensaries Not Permitted.
Notwithstanding subparagraph (A) above, a Storefront Collective Dispensary shall not be allowed or permitted
on a parcel located within 1000 feet of another permitted or allowed Storefront Collective Dispensary.
D. Locational Measurements. The distance between a Storefront Collective Dispensary and above-listed
restrictions shall be calculated as a straight line from any parcel line of the Property on which the Storefront
Collective Dispensary is located to the parcel line the real property on which the facility, building, or structure,
or portion of the building or structure, in which the above-listed use occurs or is located.
For the purposes of determining compliance with the locational restrictions imposed by this section, the
permissibility of a proposed Storefront Collective Dispensary location shall be determined by City staff based
on the date the permit application has been deemed complete by the City, with the earliest complete
applications deemed to have priority over any subsequent Storefront Collective Dispensary application for any
particular permissible location.
E. One Collective Dispensary for Each Area of the City. No more than one Storefront Collective
Dispensary may open or operate in each of the areas of the City designated as allowed or permissible
Collective Dispensary location areas in the exhibit attached to this Chapter, except for those areas which, at the
time of the adoption of the ordinance amending this Chapter, already have more than one Storefront Collective
Dispensary on a legal nonconforming basis and which are allowed to continue to operate on a legal non-
conforming basis under Section Two of the Ordinance amending this Chapter--in which case a legal non-
conforming Dispensary may be allowed to continue to operate in such an area.
F. Maximum Number of Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensaries Allowed Permits.
Notwithstanding the above, the City may not issue a total of more than three (3) Collective Dispensary permits
at any one time and, subject to the amortization allowance period contained within the uncodified portions of
the City ordinance adopting amendments to this chapter, no more than three (3) permitted or allowed
Collective Dispensaries may legally operate within the City, including specifically those dispensaries which
are open and operating in a legal nonconforming manner at the time of the adoption of the ordinance amending
this Chapter. (Ord. 5526, 2010.)

ATTACHMENT 9



28.80.070 Criteria for Review of Collective Dispensary Applications by the City Staff Hearing Officer. 
 
A. Decision on Application. Upon an application for a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit being deemed 
complete, the Staff Hearing Officer shall either issue a Storefront Collective Dispensary permit, issue a 
Storefront Collective Dispensary permit with conditions in accordance with this Chapter, or deny a Storefront 
Collective Dispensary permit. 
B. Criteria for Issuance. The Staff Hearing Officer, or the City Council on appeal, shall consider the 
following criteria in determining whether to grant or deny a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary permit: 
1. That the Collective Dispensary permit and the operation of the proposed Dispensary will be consistent 
with the intent of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 and the SB 420 Statutes for providing medical marijuana 
to qualified patients and primary caregivers, and with the provisions of this Chapter and the Municipal Code, 
including the application submittal and operating requirements herein. 
2. That the proposed location of the Storefront Collective Dispensary is not identified by the City Chief of 
Police as an area of increased or high crime activity. 
3. For those applicants who have operated other Storefront Collective Dispensaries within the City, that 
there have not been significant numbers of calls for police service, crimes or arrests in the area of the 
applicant’s former location. 
4. That issuance of a Collective Dispensary permit for the Collective Dispensary size requested is 
appropriate to meet needs of the community for access to medical marijuana. 
5. That issuance of the Collective Dispensary permit would serve needs of City residents within a 
proximity to this location. 
6. That the location is not prohibited by the provisions of this Chapter or any local or state law, statute, rule, 
or regulation, and no significant nuisance issues or problems are likely or anticipated, and that compliance with 
other applicable requirements of the City’s Zoning Ordinance will be accomplished. 
7. That the Dispensary’s Operations Plan, its site plan, its floor plan, the proposed hours of operation, and a 
security plan have incorporated features necessary to assist in reducing potential crime-related problems and as 
specified in the operating requirements section. These features may include, but are not limited to, security on-
site; procedure for allowing entry; openness to surveillance and control of the premises; the perimeter, and 
surrounding properties; reduction of opportunities for congregating and obstructing public ways and 
neighboring property; illumination of exterior areas; and limiting furnishings and features that encourage 
loitering and nuisance behavior. 
8. That all reasonable measures have been incorporated into the Dispensary security plan or consistently 
taken to successfully control the establishment’s patrons’ conduct resulting in disturbances, vandalism, crowd 
control inside or outside the premises, traffic control problems, marijuana use in public, or creation of a public 
or private nuisance, or interference of the operation of another business. 
9. That the Storefront Collective Dispensary is likely to have no potentially adverse affect on the health, 
peace, or safety of persons living or working in the surrounding area, overly burden a specific neighborhood, 
or contribute to a public nuisance, and that the Dispensary will generally not result in repeated nuisance 
activities including disturbances of the peace, illegal drug activity, marijuana use in public, harassment of 
passerby, excessive littering, excessive loitering, illegal parking, excessive loud noises, especially late at night 
or early in the morning hours, lewd conduct, or police detentions or arrests. 
10. That any provision of the Municipal Code or condition imposed by a City-issued permit, or any 
provision of any other local or state law, regulation, or order, or any condition imposed by permits issued in 
compliance with those laws, will not be violated. 
11. That the Applicant has not made a false statement of material fact or has omitted to state a material fact 
in the application for a permit. 
12. That the Applicant has not engaged in unlawful, fraudulent, unfair, or deceptive business acts or 
practices with respect to the operation of another business within the City. (Ord. 5526, 2010.) 



CORRESPONDENCE FROM THE APPELLANT 
  



























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































1 
 

EXHIBIT B 

CITY COUNCIL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR A STOREFRONT 
COLLECTIVE DISPENSARY PERMIT AT 118 N. MILPAS ST. 

 

The City Council grants approval of the Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit 
at 118 N. Milpas St. with the proposed improvements to the building and site as 
depicted on the set of architectural plans dated September 23, 2015 and 
presented to the City Council on May 10, 2016, subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 

A. Approved Dispensary.  The applicant shall operate the dispensary in 
accordance with Chapter 28.80 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, and in 
accordance with the application information and plans approved by the Staff 
Hearing Officer on January 20, 2016.   

B. Order of Development.  In order to accomplish the proposed development, 
the following steps shall occur in the order identified:  

1. Permits. 

a. Submit an application for and obtain a Building Permit (BLD) for 
construction of approved development and complete said development.   

b. Submit an application for and obtain an alarm system permit.  Said alarm 
system shall be installed and registered per Municipal Code Chapter 9.100 and 
shall meet the requirements of the Santa Barbara Police Department. 

c. Submit an application for and obtain a Public Works Permit (PBW) for the 
construction Work and Temporary Traffic Control in the Public Right-of-Way. 

d. Obtain a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit. 

Details on implementation of these steps are provided throughout the conditions 
of approval. 

C. Requirements Prior to Issuance of Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Permit.  The Owner shall submit the following, or evidence of completion of the 
following, for review and approval by the Department listed below prior to the 
issuance of a Storefront Collective Dispensary Permit for the project.  Please 
note that these conditions are in addition to the standard submittal requirements 
for each department. 



2 
 

1. Community Development Department.   

a. Elimination of Curb Cut.  The existing curb cut and driveway apron shall 
be removed and replaced with curb, parkway, and sidewalk constructed to City 
Standards. 

b. Trash Enclosure and Trash Handling.  A trash enclosure with adequate 
area for recycling containers (an area that allows for a minimum of 50 percent of 
the total capacity for recycling containers) shall be provided on the Real 
Property and locked and screened from view from surrounding properties and 
the street. 

c. Operating Plan.  The Operating Plan shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Operation of the Storefront Collective Dispensary shall be limited to 
serving no more than 150 qualified patient and/or primary caregiver 
members per day.  After which, operations must cease and the premises 
closed for the remainder of the day. 

(2) A minimum of two (2) security guards shall be on duty during 
operating hours.  In the event of guards taking breaks or escorting staff off 
the premises, backup guard(s) shall be provided to maintain the two-guard 
minimum during operating hours.  

(3) After hours security camera monitoring shall have a 24 hour remote 
live feed to the offsite security monitoring firm. 

(4) Explain that upon joining the Collective, a registered member may 
obtain medical marijuana as a qualified patient or primary caregiver only 
after an initial waiting period of 24 hours after their initial in-person visit to 
the Dispensary for the purposes of joining the Collective 

(5) A complete list of available products (including edibles), 
merchandise, and services to be sold, offered, or provided at the 
Dispensary shall be provided to Community Development Department 
staff.   

(6) Clarify that marketing concepts such as concerts, “street walk”, and 
lectures will be conducted at offsite locations, not at the dispensary 
premises. 

(7) Clarify what rules of conduct “specifically including the points on the 
attachments” (page 21 of the Operation Plan) will be specified on a large 
sign displayed in the waiting room 



3 
 

(8) Note that Canopy will post in a conspicuous location inside the 
dispensary a State Law Compliance Warning. 

(9) All qualified patients and primary caregivers shall enter the 
Storefront Collective Dispensary through the front doors outside of the 
secured fenced garden/wellness area.  The secured outside gate to this 
area shall be used for exit only. 

(10) On trash collection days, the Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Management shall remove the trash and recycling containers from the 
secured fenced area and place them in an area outside of the secured 
fenced area for servicing by the waste hauler.  The trash and recycling 
containers shall be returned to the trash/recycling enclosure within the 
secured fenced area by the Storefront Collective Dispensary Management 
prior to the close of the Dispensary that same day.  Waste hauler 
personnel shall not enter the controlled premises of the dispensary. 

(11) All management members, staff, and volunteers must visibly 
display standardized stickers or placards on each automobile driven to 
work at the Storefront Collective Dispensary so that ongoing operations 
may be monitored for accordance with Criterion 9 in 28.80.070.B.  The 
design of the stickers and/or placards shall be approved by the 
Community Development Department. 

d. Patient Agreement Form.  The Patient Agreement Form shall be 
amended as follows: 

(1) Add acknowledgement by the patient or primary caregiver of the 
Canopy’s zero tolerance policy regarding loitering and using cannabis 
products or alcohol on or within 200 feet of the property including zero 
tolerance of use during any onsite class/lecture (educational, yoga, 
meditation, etc).  In the event of loitering or a cannabis use infraction, 
membership in this Collective shall be terminated. 

(2) Add acknowledgement and agreement by the patient or primary 
caregiver that they understand that they are limited to membership to only 
one collective within the City of Santa Barbara per 28.80.080.G.5. 

e. Location(s) of Cultivation.  All locations of marijuana cultivation shall be as 
identified in the application and reviewed and approved for compliance with the 
requirements in 28.80.080.G by the Community Development Department. 



4 
 

f. Interior Signage.  The interior signage related to the rules of conduct, 
state law warning, prohibition of minors without parent/guardian, and hours of 
operation shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

g. Conditions on Plans/Signatures.  The final Resolution shall be provided 
on a full size drawing sheet as part of the drawing sets. A statement shall also 
be placed on the sheet as follows:  The undersigned have read and understand 
the required conditions, and agree to abide by any and all conditions which are 
their usual and customary responsibility to perform, and which are within their 
authority to perform. 

 Signed: 

 __________________________________________________________ 

 Property Owner       Date 

 __________________________________________________________ 

 Contractor    Date   License No. 

 __________________________________________________________ 

 Architect    Date   License No. 

 __________________________________________________________ 

 Engineer     Date   License No. 

D. Construction Implementation Requirements.  All of these construction 
requirements shall be carried out in the field by the Owner and/or Contractor for 
the duration of the project construction, including demolition and grading.  

1. Construction Contact Sign.  Immediately after Building permit issuance, 
signage shall be posted at the points of entry to the site that list the contractor(s) 
name, contractor(s) telephone number(s), and construction-related conditions, 
to assist Building Inspectors and Police Officers in the enforcement of the 
conditions of approval.  The font size shall be a minimum of 0.5 inches in height.  
Said sign shall not exceed six feet in height from the ground if it is free-standing 
or placed on a fence.  It shall not exceed 24 square feet if in a multi-family or 
commercial zone or six square feet if in a single family zone. 

2. Construction Storage/Staging.  Construction vehicle/ equipment/ 
materials storage and staging shall be done on-site.  No parking or storage shall 



5 
 

be permitted within the public right-of-way, unless specifically permitted by the 
Public Works Director with a Public Works permit.   

E. Prior to Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to issuance of the Certificate of 
Occupancy, the Owner of the Real Property shall complete the following: 

1. Alarm System.  Register and install an alarm system per the 
requirements in SBMC Chapter 9.100.  

2. North Milpas Street Public Improvements.  The Owner shall submit an 
application and Public Works plans for construction of improvements along the 
property frontage on North Milpas Street.  Plans shall be submitted separately 
from plans submitted for a Building Permit and shall be prepared by a licensed 
civil engineer registered in the State of California.  As determined by the Public 
Works Department, the improvements shall include the elimination of the 
existing 10-ft driveway apron with the replacement of a new 6-ft sidewalk, 
parkway and new curb and gutter per City standards. Tim Downey, Urban 
Forest Superintendent, Tel. (805) 564-5592, needs to be contacted in regards to 
the tree right next to the existing driveway apron in the Public Right-of-Way. 

3. Repair Damaged Public Improvements.  Repair any public 
improvements (curbs, gutters, sidewalks, roadways, etc.) or property damaged 
by construction subject to the review and approval of the Public Works 
Department per SBMC §22.60.   

F. General Conditions. 

1. Compliance with Requirements.  All requirements of the city of Santa 
Barbara and any other applicable requirements of any law or agency of the 
State and/or any government entity or District shall be met.  This includes, but is 
not limited to, the Endangered Species Act of 1973 [ESA] and any amendments 
thereto (16 U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.), the 1979 Air Quality Attainment Plan, and the 
California Code of Regulations. 

2. Approval Limitations.   

a. The conditions of this approval supersede all conflicting notations, 
specifications, dimensions, and the like which may be shown on submitted 
plans. 

b. All buildings, parking areas and other features shall be located 
substantially as shown on the plans approved by the Staff Hearing Officer. 



6 
 

c. Any deviations from the project description, approved plans or conditions 
must be reviewed and approved by the City, in accordance with the Planning 
Commission Guidelines.  Deviations may require changes to the permit and/or 
further environmental review.  Deviations without the above-described approval 
will constitute a violation of permit approval.   

G. Litigation Indemnification Agreement.  In the event the Staff Hearing 
Officer’s approval of the permit is appealed to the City Council, Applicant/Owner 
hereby agrees to defend the City, its officers, employees, agents, consultants 
and independent contractors (“City’s Agents”) from any third party legal 
challenge to the City Council’s denial of the appeal and approval of the Project, 
including, but not limited to, challenges filed pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (collectively “Claims”).  Applicant/Owner further 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City and the City’s Agents from any 
award of attorney fees or court costs made in connection with any Claim. 

Applicant/Owner shall execute a written agreement, in a form approved by the 
City Attorney, evidencing the foregoing commitments of defense and 
indemnification within thirty (30) days of the City Council denial of the appeal 
and approval of the Project.  These commitments of defense and 
indemnification are material conditions of the approval of the Project.  If 
Applicant/Owner fails to execute the required defense and indemnification 
agreement within the time allotted, the Project approval shall become null and 
void absent subsequent acceptance of the agreement by the City, which 
acceptance shall be within the City’s sole and absolute discretion.  Nothing 
contained in this condition shall prevent the City or the City’s Agents from 
independently defending any Claim.  If the City or the City’s Agents decide to 
independently defend a Claim, the City and the City’s Agents shall bear their 
own attorney fees, expenses, and costs of that independent defense. 

H. Ongoing Review of Collective Dispensary Operations.  After the issuance 
of the Certificate of Occupancy, or final building inspection signoff, and 
periodically thereafter, the Storefront Collective Dispensary Management shall 
submit to the Community Development Department for review of the operation 
for full compliance with the operational and recordkeeping requirements of 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 28.80, including but not limited to, 
compliance with Section 28.80.080.H, and verification that all persons employed 
or volunteering at the Storefront Collective Dispensary have not been convicted 
of or on probation for a crime related to the possession, sale, or distribution of 
controlled substances. A fee in an amount established by resolution of the City 
Council may be required in order to reimburse the City for the time involved in 
the review process. The staff may initiate a permit suspension or revocation 



7 
 

process for any Storefront Collective Dispensary which is found not to be in 
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 28.80 or which is operating in a 
manner which constitutes a public nuisance. 

I. Maintenance of Cultivation Records. The Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Management shall maintain on-site (i.e., at the Property designated for the 
operation of the Storefront Collective Dispensary) the medical marijuana 
cultivation records of the Collective. These records shall be signed under 
penalty of perjury by each Management Member responsible for the cultivation 
and shall identify the location or locations within the counties of Santa Barbara, 
Ventura, or San Luis Obispo at which the Collective’s medical marijuana is 
being cultivated. Such records shall also record the total number of marijuana 
plants cultivated or stored at each cultivation location. The Storefront Collective 
Dispensary shall also maintain an inventory record documenting the dates and 
amounts of medical marijuana cultivated or stored at the Dispensary Property, if 
any, as well as the daily amounts of Medical Marijuana distributed from the 
permitted Dispensary. 

 

 



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  540.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On 

Additional Water Use Regulations 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council:  
 
A. Receive an update on the status of the current drought, projected supply 

shortages, and continue the discussion on additional water use regulations;  
 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to amend Professional Services Contract No. 
21700032, with Katz and Associates, Inc., for public outreach on water supply and 
drought issues, increasing the original contract by $52,294 for a total not to exceed of 
$85,389, which includes $4,754 in extra services of Katz and Associates, Inc., that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

 
C. Authorize the City Attorney to execute a Fourth Amendment to Legal Service 

Agreement No. 24,835 with Hanson Bridgett, LLP to increase the “Do Not Exceed 
Limit” from $175,000 to $200,000 related to legal service for ongoing Desal DBO 
contractual issues. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
This report provides an update for Council on the current drought situation in relation to 
the water supply outlook and work efforts related to drought response, community-wide 
conservation and water use regulations. In an effort to address a projected shortage in 
the ability of the City to meet peak demand during the summer of 2017, additional water 
use regulations are recommended. A turfgrass (lawn) watering moratorium, 
commencing January 2017, is identified as the next available measure with sufficient 
water savings to offset the projected supply shortage.  
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On Additional Water Use 
Regulations  
November 1, 2016 
Page 2 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Council declared Stage One and Stage Two Drought Conditions on February 11, 2014, 
and May 20, 2014, respectively, as a result of unprecedented drought conditions. On 
May 5, 2015, in response to the driest consecutive four-year period on record, Council 
declared a Stage Three Drought Emergency, increasing the community’s water 
conservation target to 25 percent, and adopting a resolution for additional water use 
regulations on May 12, 2015. This was followed by a fifth consecutive year of minimal 
rainfall, with virtually no runoff to local reservoirs, which caused Council to increase the 
community’s water conservation target to 35 percent on April 26, 2016.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Water Supply Outlook 
 
The last five years have now officially become the driest five year period on record by a 
significant margin. Rainfall for the last five years has averaged less than half of the long-
term average. In accordance with the City’s Long Term Water Supply Plan, depleted 
surface water supplies have been replaced with increased groundwater production, 
supplemental water purchases, and reactivation of the City’s Desalination Plant. 
  
The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) forecasts neutral 
conditions in relation to the El Niño/La Niña cycle during winter 2016-2017. NOAA’s 
forecast for January - March 2017 continues to show equal chances of above average, 
average, and below-average precipitation during our key rainfall window. Given the 
unpredictable nature of El Niño and La Niña events, and the unprecedented nature of 
the current drought situation, the City is planning for continued drought conditions. 
 
In an effort to continue to maximize the use of the State Water delivery system, the City 
secured 7,265 Acre Feet (AF) of additional imported water in 2016. This is sufficient 
water to keep the City’s portion of the conveyance system running full through 2018. 
Due to the conveyance capacity limitations and the continued decline in the availability 
of our local surface water supplies, staff is projecting a shortage of approximately 300 
AF from August through October 2017, assuming no additional delays in desalination 
deliveries or interruptions in groundwater production. It is important to recognize there is 
no longer any contingency water supply for the City. Given the duration and severity of 
the current drought, the City will be using all backup water sources in 2017. Should any 
of the planned water sources become unavailable, the City would be in a catastrophic 
shortage requiring more extreme measures to cut water usage. Accordingly, staff is 
recommending that Council consider additional actions to further reduce demand now, 
as discussed below. Staff continues to plan for worsened supply conditions and will 
return to Council with recommended additional actions should they become necessary. 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On Additional Water Use 
Regulations  
November 1, 2016 
Page 3 

 

Community Conservation 
 
The City’s water conservation numbers through September 2016 show a cumulative 
citywide average reduction of 36 percent since the Stage Three Drought declaration in 
May 2015. Conservation for the month of September reflects a reduction of 41 percent, 
compared to 2013 water demands. 
 
The City’s water customers continue to meet and exceed both the City’s and the state’s 
conservation targets with extraordinary conservation measures. The state-mandated 
water use reduction for the City is 12 percent below 2013 water usage. In May 2016, the 
state adopted new regulations that allow agencies to reduce conservation requirements 
by demonstrating they have sufficient supplies to meet full customer demands through 
2019. Since the City remains in a severe drought condition, the City has not elected to 
seek a modification of its state requirement.  
 
Water Use Regulations 
 
For each successive year of continuing dry weather, Council has considered 
appropriate responses in the form of water use regulations and development 
restrictions, coupled with drought water rates and enhanced public outreach. These 
steps have been guided by the City’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan. With Lake 
Cachuma at record low levels, groundwater basins nearing record lows, the potential for 
construction delays in desalination production, and a projected inability to meet peak 
customer demand during the coming water year, staff has been working to develop 
recommendations regarding changes in the City’s current water use regulations. Staff 
evaluated measures that would generate savings sufficient to offset the projected short-
term supply deficit of approximately 300 AF, with an additional 500 AF of contingency, 
for a total of 800 AF of additional savings over the coming water year. This would 
require an increase in our annual conservation target from 35 percent to 40 percent, 
relative to 2013 water usage. We are currently at 36 percent. In development of the 
regulatory options, staff was focused on identifying restrictions that would be easily 
understood, would result in a decrease in demand sufficient to generate adequate 
savings to avoid shortages in the coming year, and protection of the community’s 
investment in trees and shrubs.  
 
With regard to new water use regulations, last month staff presented the Water 
Commission and Council with a recommendation that a general ban on turfgrass 
watering with potable water (with limited exceptions) is the best tool for addressing the 
current situation. Staff projected a savings of 800 AFY (Acre Feet per Year) from this 
action, based on a range of assumptions yielding 500 AFY as a worst case and 1,200 
AFY as the best case scenario. Coupled with the likelihood of additional demand 
reductions from updated community outreach and recent changes in water rates, this 
step will put the City in the best position to continue to meet system-wide demand with 
an acceptable supply buffer, barring significant added setbacks.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On Additional Water Use 
Regulations  
November 1, 2016 
Page 4 

 

In the residential sector, the only exemptions proposed were watering of certified water 
wise turfgrasses. In the institutional sector, staff proposed exemptions for: open spaces 
and parks on publicly owned and operated lands, certified water wise turfgrasses, and 
areas of active recreation at schools and state-licensed child care facilities. In the 
commercial sector, staff proposed exemptions for golf course greens and tees, and 
lawn areas that are directly related to business activity, such as ceremonial event 
spaces. These will be subject to an application for exemption and must demonstrate 
ongoing compliance with the City’s water conservation targets.  
 
Council voiced concerns about enforcing such a ban. Staff has revisited the issue and 
carefully considered alternatives, but still believes a turfgrass ban is the best way to 
reduce demand by the required amount, while still providing customers some flexibility 
in how they manage their water use. At this time, the turfgrass watering ban would allow 
for prioritization of outdoor watering so higher value landscaping such as trees and 
shrubs can be saved. In response to concerns about patrolling for enforcement, staff 
proposes that Council consider continuing the policy of complaint-driven enforcement 
for the lawn watering ban. Current complaint-driven enforcement has been successful in 
educating violators and has avoided the need to assess financial penalties thus far. The 
Santa Barbara community has been extremely compliant and supportive of the City’s 
drought-related policies and goals.  
 
Development Restrictions 
 
Council previously discussed the potential for development restrictions in December 
2014, April 2015, April 2016, and most recently on September 20, 2016. On these 
occasions, Council weighed the small amount of water savings gained by implementing 
development restrictions against the potentially negative impact on the local economy 
and decided to forego instituting development restrictions. Further restricting 
development currently in the pipeline would not provide a reduction in demand during 
the timeframe needed to meet the projected summer 2017 shortfall. 
 
Schedule 
 
Implementation of the turfgrass watering restrictions would take effect as early as 
January 1, 2017, upon adoption by Council in December, in order to begin achieving 
savings as soon as possible. Furthermore, moving forward in the winter months also 
allows for a smoother transition for the community when the need for outdoor lawn 
watering should be unnecessary with rainfall similar to the past few years. Following 
Council adoption, staff would increase community outreach to raise public awareness. It 
will be critical, if drought conditions continue, to have regulations in place that will allow 
the City to fully achieve the required conservation at the start of the 2017 irrigation 
season. Should water supply conditions improve this winter, staff would revisit these 
restrictions; however, if there is no improvement, the City will be well positioned to 
address the sixth year of a record drought.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On Additional Water Use 
Regulations  
November 1, 2016 
Page 5 

 

Rationing 
 
At the Council meeting on September 20, 2016, the concept of rationing was revisited 
and briefly discussed. Staff continues work to develop a rationing plan, recognizing that 
this would be the option of last resort to reduce water usage. Rationing would require 
that all 27,000 potable service connections be put on a monthly water budget. Water 
used in excess of that budget would be deemed illegal, with fines that could lead to 
water service being terminated. The preliminary estimates for residential water budgets 
under rationing is not likely to be sufficient for the average property to continue any 
outdoor watering. Staff has also discussed with Council a potential “Drought Impact 
Fee,” which is different from rationing because it would be applied to customer water 
bills (in compliance with Prop 218 requirements) as a means of maintaining adequate 
system revenue as increasing conservation becomes necessary. 
 
Public Outreach 
 
Staff engaged the services of Katz and Associates, Inc., (Katz) for assistance with 
public outreach, in an amount of $33,095, to assist staff resources that are spread thin 
as a result of drought workload. Based on the worsening condition of our water 
supplies, staff would like to increase the contract with Katz by $52,294 to include 
assistance with:  strategic public outreach planning, development of public informational 
materials on water supply challenges, and general media support. Katz was selected 
through a competitive Request For Proposal process and was chosen for their expertise 
with difficult water-related messaging for many California water agencies. Staff 
recommends amending the existing Professional Services Agreement with Katz and 
Associates, Inc., increasing the original contract by $52,284 for a total not to exceed 
amount of $85,389, which includes $4,754 in extra services of Katz and Associates, 
Inc., that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
Tree Health 
 
As the City moves into the sixth year of this drought, there remains a strong concern for 
protecting both private and public trees. The Parks and Recreation (P&R) Department 
developed a drought response plan in 2014 that prioritized how open space areas and 
public trees would be managed during the drought. P&R is revisiting this plan with a 
focus on additional actions that could be taken as the drought continues to intensify. As 
we contemplate a ban on turfgrass watering, one of the main objectives is to ensure 
there is adequate water for trees and shrubs, which represent a substantial long-term 
community investment. To help the community, P&R has been working closely with 
Water Conservation to develop information for homeowners and landscapers on how 
best to effectively and efficiently water trees. Although trees receive some benefit from 
watering lawns and other groundcover, the most effective method is through slow, deep 
watering that saturates deeper into the soil where lawn and groundcover roots don’t 
grow.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On Additional Water Use 
Regulations  
November 1, 2016 
Page 6 

 

Legal Services Contract 
 
The law firm of Hanson Bridget LLP provided legal assistance with negotiating and 
drafting the Desal DBO contract.  The firm has extensive experience in public entity 
contracting for complex public infrastructure projects including design, build and operate 
type procurement projects.  The current contact with Hanson Bridget LLP has a “do not 
exceed” limit of $175,000. Staff proposes to increase the limit to $200,000.  There are 
ongoing issues with regard to the DBO contract that require Hanson Bridget’s 
specialized legal assistance.  
 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Increasing the conservation goal from 35 percent to 40 percent is estimated to decrease 
revenues by $1.6 million for the remainder of Fiscal Year 2017. Current rates reflect the 
use of $7 million in reserves for this fiscal year. Staff has explored the use of a drought 
impact fee to offset the projected loss, but given the amount of resources and time it 
would take to get the fee in place, it is recommended that the additional projected 
losses be absorbed by reserves and the losses be addressed in Fiscal Year 2018 rate 
development. Staff will be coming to Council in November with a contract to initiate 
Fiscal Year 2018 water rate development. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:  
 
The recommended additional drought regulations are appropriate at this time, given the 
need to further stretch remaining water supplies. It is estimated that additional 
regulations will increase cumulative water savings to 40 percent on an annual basis, 
with monthly savings ranging from 32 percent to 50 percent. Staff will monitor the 
cumulative water savings from January 2017 through May 2017 and will use the 
information as a basis for determining whether or not to recommend additional action for 
Council consideration in the spring of 2017.   
 
WATER COMMISSION:  
 
At its meeting on October 20, 2016, the Water Commission discussed the proposed 
water use regulations, which includes moving to a 40% water conservation target and a 
ban on turfgrass watering.  In a special motion, the Commission voted in support of 
moving forward with the water use regulations as proposed to ensure adequate water is 
available to meet peak demands in the summer of 2017 and provide some level of 
contingency water should our supply situation worsen. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On Additional Water Use 
Regulations  
November 1, 2016 
Page 7 

 

ATTACHMENT: Discussion Draft – Revised Stage 3 Resolution (substantive 
changes only) 

 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/BF/cmw 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



1 

Discussion Draft - Revised Stage 3 Resolution, 
Showing Substantive Changes Only 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ESTABLISHING UPDATED WATER 
USE REGULATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT 
RESTRICTIONS EFFECTIVE DURING A STAGE THREE 
DROUGHT EMERGENCY AND REPEALING RESOLUTION 
NOS. 14-009, 14-027, 15-036 AND 16-023 

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara, along with the rest of the State of California, has 
experienced the driest five-year period on record and such conditions have resulted in 
the depletion of surface water resources that are the City’s primary water supply;  

WHEREAS, the City’s 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, which was updated in 
2015, sets forth the City’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Water Shortage Contingency Plan, on February 11, 2014, 
the City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-009 declaring a Stage One Drought 
Condition and on May 20, 2014, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 14-027 
declaring a Stage Two Drought Condition and imposing water use regulations; 

WHEREAS, due to the continued lack of sufficient rainfall, on May 12, 2015, the City 
Council adopted Resolution No. 15-036 declaring a Stage Three Drought Condition,  
updating and augmenting water use regulations, and requiring a twenty-five percent 
(25%) reduction from the year 2013 normal citywide water use; 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 16-023 to 
increase the required citywide reduction from normal citywide water use to thirty-five 
percent; 

WHEREAS, there has been a continuing lack of rainfall sufficient to make a substantial 
improvement to the water supply situation, which has exacerbated the current drought, 
thereby making it increasingly necessary to conserve existing water supplies to protect 
the public health, safety and welfare if the current drought continues; 

WHEREAS, the Water Shortage Contingency Plan provides that, when the City 
determines that the water supply for the current or impending water year is projected to be 
more than 10 percent below projected normal demand, a Stage Three Water Shortage 
Emergency shall be declared, and such conditions continue to exist; 

WHEREAS, Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 14.20.215 provides for the 
establishment, by resolution of the City Council, of water use rules and regulations 
necessary to restrict and regulate the use of water provided by the City’s water distribution 
system during drought, and provides for exemptions to such regulations;  

ATTACHMENT



 

2 

Discussion Draft - Revised Stage 3 Resolution, 
Showing Substantive Changes Only 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to minimize inequities resulting from the 
implementation of water use regulations; 
 
WHEREAS, on May 9, 2016, the Governor issued Executive Order B-37-16, Making 
Water Conservation a California Way of Life by permanently prohibiting practices that 
waste potable water and extending emergency water conservation regulations through the 
end of January 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to preserve the substantial long-term investment in 
the community’s trees and shrubs and to reserve the remaining amount of available 
irrigation water  for use on trees and shrubs.     
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Since February 11, 2014, there has existed within the City of Santa Barbara 
a continually worsening Drought Condition and a forty percent (40%) water use reduction 
from normal citywide calendar year 2013 water use is now required, based on the City’s 
projected water supply. 
 
SECTION 2.  For the protection of public health and safety, the following drought water 
use regulations regarding use of potable water from the City’s water system are hereby 
established and shall remain in effect for the duration of the Stage Three Drought 
Emergency, unless repealed or modified by resolution of the City Council: 

 
a. Except as otherwise prohibited by these regulations, any outdoor use of 

potable water through a hose, pipe, or faucet is permitted only if the water is delivered by 
use of a self-closing valve that requires operator pressure to activate the flow of water. 
Use of a sprinkler device attached to a movable hose is allowed, subject to applicable 
restrictions on time of irrigation and prohibition of runoff. 

 
b. The outdoor use of potable water from a hose, pipe, or faucet (even if 

delivered by use of a self-closing valve as provided in Section 2 a) for the purpose of 
cleaning buildings, pavement, driveways, sidewalks, tile, wood, plastic, or other hard 
surfaces is prohibited. 

 
Exceptions: 

i. When such use is the only feasible means of correcting an immediate 
threat to health and safety. 

ii. In preparation for painting or sealing, provided such washing occurs 
immediately prior to such painting or sealing. 

iii. Such use is allowed for dust control, including as a part of street 
sweeping operations, provided the use of water is the minimum 
necessary to accomplish the intended control of dust. 



 

3 

Discussion Draft - Revised Stage 3 Resolution, 
Showing Substantive Changes Only 

Water used pursuant to the above exceptions shall be applied only by use of a pressure 
washer, mop, bucket, brush, and/or other tools to limit the use of running water to the 
minimum necessary. A pressure washer is defined herein to be equipment that boosts 
incoming water pressure for the purpose of enhancing cleaning capability and minimizing 
the amount of water used. 
 

c. Effective January 1, 2017, irrigation of lawns (by any means) is prohibited.  
For purposes of this paragraph, a lawn shall mean any area that is planted in warm-
season or cool season turfgrasses. 

 
Exceptions: 
 

i. Irrigation using non-potable water;  
ii. Irrigation of playing fields used primarily for active recreation at 

schools, State licensed child care centers, and similar locations as 
determined by the Public Works Director; 

iii. Irrigation of parks and recreational non-residential open spaces that 
are publicly owned and operated; 

iv. Irrigation of greens and tee areas at golf courses; 
v. Irrigation of a lawn area, the use of which is directly related to a 

business activity, subject to prior authorization by the Public Works 
Director and documentation of ongoing compliance with the City’s 
targeted reduction in water use; 

vi. Irrigation of areas planted entirely with turfgrasses that are included 
on a list of low water use grasses approved by the Public Works 
Director and posted on the City’s Internet site, subject to prior 
authorization by the Public Works Director. 

 
c.d. Outdoor irrigation of vegetation other than lawns, including any grass, 

shrub, plant, tree, or groundcover, is prohibited, except between the hours of 6:00 p.m. 
and 8:00 a.m. of the following day if automatically controlled and between the hours of 
4:00 p.m. and 10:30 a.m. of the following day if manually controlled.  Irrigation by hand-
held hose is subject to the self-closing valve provision of Section 2.a. 

 
Exceptions: 

i. Irrigation accomplished by use of a water truck that delivers water by 
injection probe below mulch or below the soil surface; 

ii. Irrigation devices such as tree watering bags and other similar 
devices that release water at a slow rate for the purpose of watering 
trees. 

 
d.e. Irrigation with potable water that causes runoff onto adjacent property, non-

irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or parking structures 
is prohibited. 

 



 

4 

Discussion Draft - Revised Stage 3 Resolution, 
Showing Substantive Changes Only 

e.f. Irrigation with potable water during and within 48 hours after measurable 
rainfall is prohibited. Measurable rainfall is defined as a ¼ of an inch or more of 
precipitation in a 24-hour period. 
 

f.g. Irrigation of turf on public street medians with potable water is prohibited.  
 

h. The issuance of permits for use of potable water from fire hydrants is 
suspended.  Applicants shall be directed to apply for a permit to use recycled water.  

 
g.i. Washing of vehicles and boats is prohibited except at commercial car 

washing facilities equipped with water recycling equipment or by use of a hose, subject to 
the self-closing valve provision of Section 2.a.  Operators of commercial car washing 
facilities shall post a notice in a conspicuous place advising the public as to whether their 
operations conform to water recycling requirements.  

 
h.j. Use of water in any fountain or other decorative water feature is prohibited. 

 
Exceptions:  Fountains or other decorative water features that are equipped with a 
recirculation system are permitted in any of the following locations:  

i. indoor locations; 
ii. residential properties; 
iii. When total water surface area is less than or equal to twenty five (25) 

square feet; 
iv. Where, since the May 20, 2014 adoption of Stage Two regulations,   

aquatic life existed in the fountain or decorative water feature. 
 

i.k. Swimming pools and spas must have a cover that conforms to the size and 
shape of the pool or spa and acts as an effective barrier to evaporation.  The cover shall 
be in place during periods when use of the pool is not reasonably expected to occur. 

 
j.l. Draining and refilling a pool in excess of one third of the volume per year is 

prohibited, except as authorized by the Public Works Director based on evidence from 
qualified maintenance personnel that such further draining is required to make needed 
repairs, or to prevent equipment damage or voiding of warranties.  
 

k.m. All restaurants and other eating and drinking establishments shall 
post, in a conspicuous place, a Notice of Drought Condition as approved by the Public 
Works Director and shall not serve water except upon specific request by a customer. 

 
l.n. Operators of hotels, motels and other commercial establishments offering 

lodging shall post in each room a Notice of Drought Condition as approved by the Public 
Works Director. Operators of hotels and motels shall provide guests with the option of 
choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily. The hotel or motel shall 
prominently display notice of this option in each guestroom using clear and easily 
understood language. 

 



 

5 

Discussion Draft - Revised Stage 3 Resolution, 
Showing Substantive Changes Only 

m.o. Operators of pools, exercise facilities, and other similar commercial 
establishments providing showering facilities shall promote limitation of showering time 
and post a Notice of Drought Condition as approved by the Public Works Director in a 
conspicuous place. 

 
SECTION 3.  Violation of any regulation in Section 2 of this Resolution is subject to the 
penalties and charges set forth in Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 14.20.226.  
 
SECTION 4.  For the protection of public health and safety, the following drought-related 
development restrictions is hereby established and shall remain in effect for the duration of 
the Stage Three Drought Emergency, unless repealed or modified by resolution of the City 
Council: 
 

a. Irrigation with potable water of landscapes outside of newly constructed 
homes and buildings must be accomplished in a manner consistent with 
regulations and other requirements established by the California Building 
Standards Commission and the Department of Housing and Community 
Development. 

 
b. Exemptions:  

 
i. Projects with an application submitted for a building permit prior to 

adoption of this Resolution are exempt from item 4.a above. 
 

ii. Exemptions to the development restrictions identified above may be 
granted by the Community Development Director, in consultation with 
the Public Works Director, for specific uses of water on the basis of 
factually demonstrated need or undue hardship and in accordance 
with guidelines for exemptions as may be determined by the 
Community Development Director.  If the Community Development 
Director denies a request for an exemption for a specific water use, a 
written request for reconsideration may be made to the Planning 
Commission.  The decision of the Planning Commission shall be final. 

 
iii. Administrative Guidelines for implementation of item 4.a. shall be 

prepared by the Community Development Director. 
 
SECTION 4.  Resolution Numbers 14-009, 14-027, 15-036 and 16-023 are hereby 
repealed in their entireties and of no further force or effect. 



Agenda Item No.  11 

File Code No.  800.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Mayor Schneider And Councilmember Murillo For 

Resolution In Support of Standing Rock Sioux 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve, by reading of title only, a Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Expressing Solidarity With The Standing Rock Sioux Regarding The 
Dakota Access Pipeline, as requested in a Memo from Mayor Schneider and 
Councilmember Murillo. 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember Murillo requesting 
that an item be placed on the City Council Agenda regarding a resolution proposed by 
members of the Chumash community supporting the Standing Rock Sioux tribe, and to 
pass the attached resolution. The proposed resolution attached to the memorandum has 
been revised for formatting.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum From Mayor Schneider and Councilmember Murillo  

 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 









1 
 

RESOLUTION NO._____ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA EXPRESSING SOLIDARITY WITH THE 
STANDING ROCK SIOUX REGARDING THE DAKOTA 
ACCESS PIPELINE 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Dakota Access Pipeline would carry as many as 570,000 
barrels of fracked crude oil per day for more than 1,100 miles from the Bakken oil fields 
of North Dakota to Illinois, passing over sensitive landscapes including treaty protected 
land containing recognized cultural resources and across or under 209 rivers, creeks, 
and tributaries including the Missouri River, which provides drinking water and irrigates 
agricultural land in communities across the Midwest; and  
 
WHEREAS, despite opposition from the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe, other Tribes 
located along the Pipeline route, more than 200 tribes and native organizations from 
across the continent, farmers, scientists, and more than 30 environmental advocacy 
groups; and without Tribal consultation or meaningful environmental review as required 
by federal law in July 2016 the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued a permit allowing 
the construction of the fracked oil pipeline to move forward; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara, also known as the village of Syuxtun, has been 
a leader in the environmental movement since the disastrous January 1969 oil spill and 
the activism resulting from that event was a leading factor in the development of state 
and federal environmental protection regulations, including the National Environmental 
Policy Act or NEPA; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Santa Barbara beaches and the Santa Barbara Channel were 
severely contaminated and a massive number of marine life was killed due to the 1969 
oil platform "blow-out," which released more than 3 million gallons of crude oil into the 
natural environment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara has suffered harm from the 2015 Plains All 
American pipeline rupture in the form of damaged reputation, loss of tourism-related tax 
revenue, and degradation of the natural environment related to marine life fatalities, and 
was forced to file a $2.2 million-dollar claim against Plains All-American; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Santa Barbara City Council adopted a comprehensive Climate Change 
Action Plan in 2012, which focuses on sustainable energy practices and development of 
renewable energy sources, and the City is actively pursuing a Community Choice 
Energy collaboration with other governmental bodies in Santa Barbara County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Santa Barbara City Council took a position in 2015 opposing oil trains 
traveling through the city limits to the Phillips 66 refinery in Nipomo, with Mayor Helene 
Schneider writing a letter to San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission stating the 



2 
 

risk was too great to the health and safety of city residents in the event of an accident or 
spill involving the five oil trains proposed to use the railroad per week; and  
 
WHEREAS, members of the local Chumash community, along with the Coastal Band of 
the Chumash Nation, a sovereign nation, and the Barbareño Chumash Council, have 
taken a position opposing the Dakota Access Pipeline and respectfully ask the Santa 
Barbara City Council to take a position on this matter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara honors residents of Chumash heritage and 
respects the Chumash cultural tradition of reverence for the natural environment and 
stewardship of land, water, and air; and the City acknowledges prior Chumash activism 
such as its opposition to the Liquified Natural Gas Plant at Humqaq, also now known as 
Point Conception, in 1978; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara supports the Chumash community, especially our 
youth, in being active in environmental issues and uniting with other Native American 
tribes regarding causes of vital importance to their communities. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  We acknowledge concerns from Indigenous Peoples regarding the 
Dakota Access Pipeline and urge the project to be halted until an Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) can be completed and full consultation with affected tribes conducted. 
We further urge Santa Barbara residents to be aware of this important struggle for 
Indigenous sovereignty, self-determination, and right to consultation, and to support the 
efforts of the Standing Rock Sioux in their quest for environmental justice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Interviews For City Advisory Groups 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 15, 2016. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Interviews of applicants for various positions on City Advisory Groups are to be held on 
October 25, 2016, at an estimated time of 4:00 p.m.  Applicants will also have the option to 
be interviewed on November 1, 2016, at an estimated time of 4:00 p.m. and November 15, 
2016, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
For the current 67 vacancies, 75 individuals submitted 89 applications.  A list of eligible 
applicants and pertinent information about the City Advisory Groups is attached to this 
report. 
 
Applicants have been notified that to be considered for appointment they must be 
interviewed.  Applicants have been requested to prepare a 2-3 minute verbal presentation, 
in response to a set of questions specific to the group for which they are applying.  
Applicants applying to more than one advisory group may have up to 5 minutes for their 
presentation. 
 
Appointments are scheduled to take place on December 6, 2016. 
 
ATTACHMENT: List of Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Deborah L. Applegate, Deputy City Clerk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 

1 
Annual Recruitment 2016 

 ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
ANNUAL RECRUITMENT 2016 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Three terms:  December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category:  Residents of the City or a full-time employee of an entity doing business within the City 

during their term of office, demonstrates an interest, experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability 
and access. 

• Representatives must be from the following categories: 
 Two members must be from the Disability Community. 
 One representative from the Public at Large. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Representatives of the 
Disability Community (2) 

Nick Koonce*  1) Access Advisory 
2) Building & Fire Code of 

Appeals 
 

Karen Johnson* 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years   

Representative of the 
Public at Large (1) 

Karen Johnson* 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years   

Nick Koonce*   1)      Access Advisory 
2)     Building & Fire Code of  
        Appeals 

 

Janice Rodriguez   
 

Barbara Silver 
12/17/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years 
 

 
*Eligible for more than one category.                        
 



2     

 
AIRPORT COMMISSION 

 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 Two terms:  December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Category:  Representatives must be from the following categories: 

 Qualified elector of the City.  
 Qualified elector of the City or County of Santa Barbara. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City  (1 or 2)  

Karen Kahn* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Dennis Houghton*    

Kathryn A. McGill* 
(Kathy) 

 1) Creeks Advisory Council 
2) Airport Commission 
3) Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

Qualified Elector of 
the County of Santa 
Barbara (0 or 1) 

Craig Arcuri 
6/25/2013 – 12/31/2016 

2 years, 6 months 
  

Paul Bowen    

Dennis Houghton*    

Karen Kahn* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Kathryn A. McGill* 
(Kathy) 

 1)      Creeks Advisory Council 
2)      Airport Commission 
3)      Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

*Eligible for more than one category 



3     

 
ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 

 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 December 31, 2020 (Licensed Architect – City or County) 
 December 31, 2020 (Licensed Architect – City) 
 December 31, 2020 (Professional Qualifications – City) 

• Qualifications/Category:   
 Qualified elector of the City or County of Santa Barbara and possess professional experience in related 
fields, including, but not limited to landscape architecture, building design, structural engineering, or industrial 
design.  Representative must be from the following categories: 
 Qualified Elector and Licensed Architect (2) 
 Qualified Elector and Possess Professional Qualifications (1) 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City and Licensed 
Architect (2 or 3)  

Wm. Howard Wittausch* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Qualified Elector and 
Possess Professional 
Qualifications (0 or 1)  

David R. Watkins    

Wm. Howard Wittausch* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

*Eligible for more than one category 
 
 



4     

 
BUILDING AND FIRE CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

• Vacancy:  Open  (The Municipal Code does not specify a maximum number of members on the appeals board).   
• Term Expiration:   

 Term:  Open 
• Qualifications/Category:  Resident of the City or adjoining unincorporated areas of Santa Barbara County.  

Appointee shall demonstrate knowledge and expertise in specialty areas governed by the construction and fire 
codes of the City. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
Adjoining 
Unincorporated Areas of 
Santa Barbara County 
(Open) 

Tariq R. Kadri    

Nick Koonce  1) Access Advisory Committee 
2) Building and Fire Code of 

Appeals 
 

Paul Spieler    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5     

 
CENTRAL COAST COMMISSION FOR SENIOR CITIZENS 

 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expiration: 

 June 30, 2020 
• Qualifications/Category:   

 Resident of the City.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City  
(1)  

Jim D. Machen 
 1) Downtown Parking Committee 

2) Fire & Police Pension 
Commission 

3) Central Coast Commission For 
Senior Citizens 

 

 
 

 
 
 



6     

 
CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expiration: 

 December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Must be a qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government, and for one year after 

ceasing to be a member, shall not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of the 
City (1) 

Desmond O’Neill 
12/17/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years 
1) Parks & Recreation Commission 
2) Civil Service Commission  

 
 
 



7     

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

• Six vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Latino Community) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Youth Oriented Services) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Downtown Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Lower Westside Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Housing Authority) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Disabled Community) 

• Must be residents or employees of the designated organizations, but need not be qualified electors of the City. Must 
represent one of the specified categories or organizations.   

• One representative from each of the following categories: 
 Lower Westside 

Neighborhood 
 Downtown Neighborhood 

 Latino Community 
 Housing Authority 

  Youth Oriented Services 
 Disabled Community 

 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 
Please see next page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8     

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Lower Westside 
Neighborhood (1) 

None    

Latino Community (1) Joanna Romo*    

Raphael Vazquez*  1)  Fire & Police Pension Commission 
2) Sister Cities 
3) Community Development & Human 

Services Committee 

 

Youth Oriented Services (1) Ken Gates    

Patricia Bermudez 
Mosqueda 

   

Joanna Romo*    

Ashley Salvador*    

Raphael Vazquez*  1)       Fire & Police Pension Commission 
                2)       Sister Cities 

3)       Community Development & Human 
          Services Committee 

 

Downtown Neighborhood (1) Charles W. Flacks    

Kate Lee    

Sonia Rosenbaum    

Ashley Salvador*    

Hector Sanchez  Community Development & Human Services 
Committee 
Neighborhood Advisory Council 
Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Housing Authority (1) Antonia (Tonie) 
Hood 

   

Disabled Community (1) Ashley Salvador*    

*Eligible for more than one category.                        



9     

 
CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 December 31, 2019 (Hotel/Lodging Industry – City) 
 December 31, 2019 (Resident of City or County) 

• Qualifications/Category: 
 Member must be a resident of the City or County of Santa Barbara and shall have some experience in 

ocean use, business, environmental issues and provide community-at-large representation.  
 One member must represent the Hotel/Lodging Industry. 
 One member may be a resident of the City or County of Santa Barbara. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Representative of the 
Hotel/Lodging Industry 
(1) 

Paul Bullock 
6/30/2009 – 12/31/2016 

7 years, 6 months 
  

Resident of the City or 
County of Santa 
Barbara (1) 

Katie Klein    

Kristie A. Klose    

Kathryn A. McGill 
(Kathy) 

 1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Airport Commission 
3) Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

Jack Reed    

Shirin Tolle  1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Harbor Commission  

Whitney Wilkinson    



10     

 
DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 

 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:  

 Three terms:  December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category:   

 Appointee shall demonstrate an interest and knowledge of downtown parking issues and must be a 
resident of the City or County. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City 
 (2 - 3) Robert Janeway    

Matt LaBrie 
12/16/2008 – 12 31/2016 

8 years 
  

Jim D. Machen  1)  Downtown Parking 
Committee 

2) Fire & Police Pension 
Commission 

3) Central Coast Commission 
For Senior Citizens 

 

James F. Scafide    

Kate Schwab 
12/17/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years 
  

John (Jack) Ucciferri    

Resident of the County 
of Santa Barbara (0-1) Gabriella Forrester    

 
 
 
 



11     

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 One term expires December 31, 2017 (Active/Retired Police Officer) 
 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Qualified Elector) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Qualified Elector) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Retired Firefighter) 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Two qualified electors* of the City who are not an active fire fighters or police officers. 
 One active or retired police officer who is a member of the Fire and Police Pension System who need not 

be a resident or elector of the City. 
 One retired firefighter. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Gabe Dominocielo 12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 
4 years 

  

Jim D. Machen  1) Downtown Parking 
2) Fire and Police Pension Commission 
3) Central Coast Commission For Senior Citizens 

 

Raphael Vazquez  1) Fire and Police Pension Commission 
2) Sister Cities 
3) Community Development & Human Services 

Committee 

 

Active or Retired 
Police Officer Who is 
a Member of the Fire 
and Police Pension 
System (1) 

None   . 

Retired Firefighter (1) None    

 



12     

HARBOR COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 December 31, 2017. 
 December 31, 2020  

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Qualified elector* of the City. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2) 

Jeff Escola   
 

Amy Franco  1) Harbor Commission 
2) Rental Housing Mediation Board   

William Spicer 6/30/2009 – 12/31/2016 
7 years, 6 months 

  

Shirin Tolle  1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Harbor Commission  

 



13     

 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 Two terms:  December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Categories:  One member shall be a qualified elector of the City (Public at Large) and one member 

may be a non-resident (Public at Large).    
 Members must be a qualified electors of the City or County of Santa Barbara and demonstrate knowledge 

of the history and architecture of the City. 
 One member must be a licensed architect. 
 One member must be a Professional Architectural Historian. 

 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Architect 
(1) 
 

None    

Professional 
Architectural 
Historian (1) 

None    

 
 
 
 
 



14     

 
LIBRARY BOARD 

 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expiration: 

 December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Member must be a Qualified Elector* of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector  (1) Susan C. Kinnevy  1) Sister Cities Board 
2) Library Board 
3) Rental Housing 

Mediation Board 

 

Susette H.H.C. Naylor 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Kathleen Rust    

 
 
 



15     

LIVING WAGE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 June 30, 2020 (Employee of a Local Non-Profit Entity) 
 June 30, 2020 (Nominee of the Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce or Santa Barbara Downtown 

Organization) 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 One member of the Committee shall be an employee of a local non-profit. 
 One member of the Committee shall be a nominee of the Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce 

or Santa Barbara Downtown Organization. 
 

 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Employee of a Local Non-Profit 
Entity (1) 

Adriana Marroquin    

Nominee of the Santa Barbara 
Chamber of Commerce or Santa 
Barbara Downtown Organization. 
(1) 

Kenneth Oplinger 12/17/2013 – 6/30/2016 

3 years 

  



16     

 
MEASURE P COMMITTEE 

 

• Five vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Drug Abuse, Treatment & Prevention Counselor) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Resident of the City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Criminal Defense Attorney) 
 Two terms expire December 31, 2020 (Civil Liberties Advocate) 

 
• Qualifications/Categories:  Members must be representatives of the following categories: 

 Criminal Defense Attorney  Resident of the City 
 Civil Liberties Advocate (2)  Drug Abuse, Treatment & Prevention 

Counselor 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Criminal Defense Attorney (1) None    

Resident of the City (1) None    

Civil Liberties Advocate (2) None    

Drug Abuse, Treatment & 
Prevention Counselor (1) 

None    

 
 
 



17     

 
NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL 

 

• Five vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2017 (Lower Eastside) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Eastside Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Public at Large) 
 Two terms expires December 31, 2020 (Public at Large) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Lower Westside Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (West Downtown Neighborhood) 

• Qualifications/Categories:  Representatives must be from the following categories: 
 Public at Large - must be 

residents of the City but 
need not be qualified 
electors* of the City (3) 

 Eastside Neighborhood 

 Lower Westside 
          Neighborhood 
 Lower Eastside 

                Neighborhood 
 
 

 West Downtown                                    
Neighborhood 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

(Cont’d) 
Please see next page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18     

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Public at Large (3) Sally Foxen* 3/01/2011 – 12/31/2016 
4 years, 9 months 

  

May O’Mahoney*    

Eve Lois Sanford*    

Hector Sanchez*  Community Development & Human Services 
Committee 
Rental Housing Mediation Board 
Neighborhood Advisory Council 

 

Lower Westside 
Neighborhood 
Representative (1) 

Sally Foxen* 3/01/2011 – 12/31/2016 
4 years, 9 months 

  

West Downtown 
Neighborhood (1) 

May O’Mahoney*    

Eve Lois Sanford*    

Hector Sanchez*  Community Development & Human Services 
Committee 
Rental Housing Mediation Board 
Neighborhood Advisory Council 

 

Eastside 
Neighborhood (1) 

None    

Lower Eastside (1) None    

*Eligible for more than one category. 
 



19     

 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 
 Two terms expire December 31, 2020 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Qualified electors of the City.  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Elector of the 
City (3) 

John Abrami    

Tara Armbruster    

Nichol Clark 6/24/2014 – 12/31/2016 
2 years, 6 months 

  

Andria Martinez Cohen 6/28/2016 – 12/31/2016 
6 months 

  

Kathryn A. McGill (Kathy)  1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Airport Commission 
3) Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

Desmond O’Neill  1) Parks & Recreation Commission 
2) Civil Service Commission  

Erik Thorlaksson   
 

 
 
 
 



20     

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:  

 Two terms expire December 31, 2020. 
• Qualifications/Categories:  

 Qualified Elector* of the City 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2) 

Robert Allan    

Sheila Lodge 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years 
  

Gregory Mohr    

June Pujo 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Lesley Wiscomb    
 



21     

 

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION BOARD 
 

• Eight vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Landlord – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Homeowner – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Landlord – County) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Tenant – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Landlord – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Homeowner – City or County) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Homeowner – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Tenant – City) 
 

• Qualifications/Categories:  Members must be residents of the City or County of Santa Barbara.  The majority of 
members must be residents of the City of Santa Barbara.  Non-City resident members must reside in a jurisdiction 
which contracts with the Rental Housing Mediation Program for services. 
Representatives must be from the following categories: 

 Two Tenants (City or County)   
Tenants must be:   

(1)  renting/leasing a dwelling, and 
(2) have no ownership of residential properties. 

 Three Landlords (City or County) 
 Three Homeowners (City or County)   
   

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
  

Please see next page. 
 (Cont’d) 



22     

 
RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION BOARD 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Tenant - City or County 
(2) 

Amy Franco  1) Harbor Commission 
2) Rental Housing Mediation Board  

Rigoberto Gutierrez    

Susan C. Kinnevy  1) Sister Cities 
        2)     Library Board 

3) Rental Housing Mediation Board 
 

Hector Sanchez  Community Development & Human 
Services Committee 
Neighborhood Advisory  
Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Landlord – City or 
County (3) 

Richard Axilrod 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years   

Homeowner – City or 
County (3) 

Dan Collie    

Justin Dullum 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years 
  

 
 



23     

 
SANTA BARBARA YOUTH COUNCIL 

• Five vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires June 30, 2017 (Santa Barbara High School) 
 One term expires June 30, 2018 (Local Private High School) 
 One term expires June 30, 2018 (Dos Pueblos High School) 
 Two terms expire June 30, 2018 (Local Alternative, Community, or Continuation High School) 

• Qualifications/Categories:  Members must be between the ages of 13-19 years and may be from the City or 
County.  Members must be from the following categories: 
 One member from Santa Barbara High School 
 One member from a Local Private High School 
 One member from Dos Pueblos High School 
 Two members from Local Alternative, Community, or Continuation High 

School 

 

                       *Applicants must appear for an interview before the Santa Barbara Youth Council and City Council. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years 

Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Santa Barbara High 
School (1) 

Diego Perez    

Local Private High 
School (1) 

Kyle Aitcheson    

Dos Pueblos High 
School (1) 

Michelle Qin    

Local Alternative, 
Community, or 
Continuation High 
School (2) 

Daniel Reyes    
Joseph Calzada    



24     

 
SINGLE FAMILY DESIGN BOARD 

 

 One vacancy. 
 June 30, 2020. 
 Member shall reside within Santa Barbara County and shall be a licensed landscape architect.  Member shall 

poses professional qualifications in fields related to architecture, including, but not limited to, building design, 
structural engineering, industrial design, or landscape contracting.   

 Member may serve on the Architectural Board of Review or the Historic Landmarks Commission. 
 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Landscape 
Architect (1) 

None    

 



25     

 
SISTER CITIES COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Two terms expire December 31, 2020. 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Representatives must be residents of the City.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) 
 

Susan C. Kinnevy  1) Sister Cities Committee 
2) Library Board 
3) Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Margaret Saavedra    

Raphael Vazquez  1) Fire & Police Commission 
2) Sister Cities 
3) Community Development & 

Human Services Committee 

 

 
 

 



26     

 
TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Two terms expire December 31, 2020. 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Members must be residents of the City or County of Santa Barbara.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) 
 

David Hodges    

 
 



27     

 
WATER COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Two terms expire December 31, 2019. 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Members must be Qualified Electors* of the City.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) 
 

Monty Cole    

Dave Davis 
6/23/2015 – 12/31/2016 

1 year, 6 months 
  

Michael Kielborn 
6/25/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years, 6 months 
  

 



Agenda Item No.  13 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference With City Attorney – Pending Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is Santa Barbara Channelkeeper v. City of Santa Barbara, USDC 
Case No. CV-1103624 JHN (AGRx) 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.PDF
	8.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.PDF
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.PDF
	20.DOC
	21.PDF
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	Mayor
	NOVEMBER 1, 2016
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



